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Our Philosophy

Since the inception, BankDhofar with its philosophy of “Customer
First” has developed a reputation for commitment, foresight and
remarkable, yet solid, growth. BankDhofar believes in, and is
committed to, maintaining relationships by offering personalised
services to retail and corporate clients.

BankDhofar is committed to new ideas, innovation, revision
and fine-tuning of its practices. The Bank continues to offer
innovative products and services and implement creative
strategies ahead of market trends to achieve sustained
growth.

BankDhofar is well known for reliability as its foundation for
service, based onadvanced technology delivered by professional,
competent and approachable staff. The Bank consistently
demonstrates good faith and integrity in its dealings with all
its stakeholders, providing acceptable returns to shareholders
whilst maintaining a strong financial base.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

2008 Highlights

A new organisation
structure for the Bank

Launched our 5 year
strategic plan
(2008 - 2012)

Selection of New Core
Banking System

Shareholders’ Equity
increased by RO 70.8
million through Rights
Issue

Dear Shareholders,

The Bank’s Financial Performance in 2008

post-rights issue increased from RO 110.50 million at the
end of 2007 to RO 188.43 million at 31 December 2008.
In this regard we would also like to extend our sincere
thanks to all our shareholders for the trust and confidence
reposed in our Bank and for making this “Rights Issue” a
grand success.

New Core Banking System

To enable the Bank's vision of transformation to reach the
next level of business growth and customer service, the
Bank has chosen Finacle Universal Banking Solution from
infosys. As part of this strategic initiative, the Bank would
implement a New Core Banking system which will cover
all banking activities, Customer Relationship Management,
Treasury, Internet Banking and Mobile Banking Solutions
for its operations and channels for the customers. The
introduction of new age technology-based robust banking
software would make the Bank more competitive and
enable it to adopt world class banking practices to offer
distinctive services to the customers.

Corporate Governance

The Bank has fully complied with all directives of the
Code of Caorporate Governance issued by the Capital
Market Authority. Also during 2008 the Bank assessed and
reviewed the internal control procedures of the Bank.

In compliance with Article 101 of the Commercial
Companies Law No. 4/1974 and its amendments,
the Board of Directors would like to disclose that the
total amount received in 2008 as sitting fees was
RO 71,800 and the proposed remuneration for the year is
RO 128,200,

Proposed Dividends

The Board of Directors recommends 15.5% cash dividends
amounting to RO 10.97 million, and a Bonus share issue of
4.5%, translating to 31,848,224 shares of RO 0,100 each,
of the share capital of the Bank. We will also transfer an
amountof RO 7.7 million to subordinated loan reserve as per
the requirements of the Bank for International Settlemnent
(BIS) for the purpose of Capital Adequacy Calculation.

The percentages of dividends distributed in the last five
years is as follows:

2003 | 2004 | 2005 | 2006 | 2007

ot 15% 15% 10% 159%
Dividends ’ ’ ’ ’
-

Acknowledgement

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our valuable
customers for their patronage and confidence they have
reposed in the Board of Directors and the management
of the Bank. I thank the sharehalders for your continuous
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The Board of Directors also wishes to thank the Central
Bank of Oman for its valuable guidance to the local banking
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P.O. Box 258, Ruwi

Postal Code 112

Sultanate of Oman

Tel: +968 24817775
Tel: +968 24815896
Fax: +968 24815581
www.deloitte.com

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BANK DHOFAR SAOG

We have performed the procedures prescribed in Capital Market Authority (CMA) Circular No. 16,/2003 dated
29 December 2003 with respect to the accompanying corporate governance report of Banl Dhofar SA0G and
its application of corporate governance practices in accordance with CMA code of corporate governance issued
under Circular No. 11/2002 dated 3 June 2002 and CMA Rules and Guidelines on disclosure, issued under
CMA administrative decision 5, dated 27 June 2007. Our engagement was undertaken in accordance with the
International Standards on Related Services to agreed-upon procedures engagements. The procedures were
performed solely to assist you in evaluating the Bank’s compliance with the code as issued by the CMA.

We report our findings as below:

We found that the Bank’s corporate governance report fairly reflects the Bank’s application of the provisions

of the Code and is free from any material misrepresentation.

Because the above procedures do not constitute either an audit or a review made in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing or International Standards on review Engagements, we do not express

any assurance on the corporate governance report.

Had we performed additional procedures or had we performed an audit or review of the corporate governance
report in accordance with International Standards on Auditing or International Standards on Review
Engagements, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you.

Our report is solely for the purpose set forth in the first paragraph of this report and for your information and
is not to be used for any other purpose, this report relates only to the accompanying corporate governance
report of Bank Dhofar SAOG to be included in its annual report for the year ended 31 December 2008 and
does not extend to any financial statements of Bank Dhofar SAOG, taken as a whole.

Dégm; \T; w

Deloitte & Touche (M.E.) ,
Muscat, Sultanate of Oman
28 January 2009

Member of
Audit .Tax .Consulting . Financial Advisory.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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Corporate Governance Report
For the year ended 31 December 2008

Part One

1. Corporate Governance Philosophy

The Board of Directors of BankDhofar SAQG (the Bank) bears
the principal responsibility of fashioning the Corporate
Governance Code as appropriate to the Bank within the
broad framework enunciated by the Central Bank of Oman
(CBO) and the Capital Market Authority (CMA). It is also
charged with the responsibility of subjecting the code to
periodic review to keep it refurbished and contemporary,

Decision-making within the Bank has been broadly
divided into two levels. The Board of Directors (the Board)
at the apex level, as trustees of the shareholders, bears
the responsibility of strategic supervision of the Bank,
apart from fulfilling statutory obligations. Some of the
major responsibilities of the Board, namely audit, senior
management succession, legal and requlatory compliance
are discharged through four sub-committees, viz. the
Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Risk
Committee and the Human Resources Strategic Committee.
These sub-committees which operate under the Board
approved charters have been meeting regularly and have
contributed significantly to the effective functioning of
the Code of Corporate Governance. The charters of these
committees meet with all the requirements as laid down
in the Code of Corporate Governance enunciated by the
CBO and the CMA. In addition, the Board carries the
responsibility of approving the strategic plans of the Bank.
The Executive Management of the Bank comprises the
senior Managers headed by the Chief Executive Office.

Through this two-tiered interlinked governance process,
a wholesome balance has been created between the
need for focus and executive freedom, and the need for
supervision, control and checks and balances.

The formal Code of Corporate Governance prescribes the
highest ethical standards in the conduct of the Bank’s
business. The senior members of the Bank are fully
cognizant of their responsibilities in setting personal
examples so that the code is internalized within the Bank
and becomes part of its culture. In the ultimate analysis,

{
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there can be no substitute for the enlightened self-
regulation that is expected of every member of the Bank.

2. The Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

The Board has the full authority to perform all acts required
for managing the Bank and protecting and growing
the shareholders’ interests pursuant to its abjectives,
Such authority shall not be limited or restricted except
as provided by the law, the Articles of Association or
resolutions of the General Meetings.

The responsibilities and functions of the Board include the
following:

- Charting the overall strategic direction of the Bank
and reviewing and approving the annual business and
strateqic plans,

- Monitoring the Bank’s performance and evaluating
whether the business is properly managed in
accordance with the Bank’s set plans.

- Approving the interim and annual financial statements
and providing accurate information at the right time to
the shareholders, in accordance with the instructions
of the Capital Market Authority,

- Forming various Board sub-commiltees, approving
their charters and reviewing the functions of these
committees.

- Reviewing all audit reports submitted by internal and
external auditors and statutory agencies.

- Ensuring that the Bank conducts its operations in an
ethical and transparent manner.

- Assessing and approving the proper delegation of
authorities to Executive Management.

- Evaluating the functions and the performance of the
Chief Executive Officer and other key employees,

Size and Terms of the Board

The Board consists of nine (9) Non-Executive Directors who
are elected by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting. The term of office of the Board of Directors is
three years and each Director can be re-elected for a

/|
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similar period. The term of the current Board expires in
March 2010.

Composition and Selection of the Board

Members of the Board of Directors are elected from among
the Bank’s shareholders or non-shareholders provided that
a shareholder candidate owns no less than 50,000 shares
of the Bank. All members of the Board of Directors shall be
Non-Executive Directors.

A minimum of one-third of the Board members shall be
independent Directors, none of their immediate relatives
having held a senior position in the Bank for the last
two years, who shall have no relation with the Bank, its
affiliated and sister companies that could result in financial
transactions other than contracts and transactions entered
through open tendering or done in the ordinary course of
business.

The election process is through direct secret ballot
whereby each shareholder shall have a number
of votes equivalent to the number of
he/she holds. Fvery shareholder shall have the right to
vote for one candidate or more provided the total number
of votes in the vating form is equivalent to the number of
shares he/she holds.

shares

At present all the Directors of the Board are non-executive
and are independent within the scope of the definitions
laid down in the Code of Corporate Governance by the
CMA.

Board Committees

The Board has the following four permanent Board
committees, whose objectives, powers and procedures
are governed by the terms of reference of the respective
committees as enshrined in their Charters, approved by
the Board:

- Executive Committee
- Audit Committee
- Risk Committee

- Human Resources Strategic Committee

Additional committees may be established from lime to
time based on business needs. Each committee has access
to the information and resources it requires, including direct
access to staff and consultants, The Board has selected
the committee members based on their professional
backgrounds, skills and other qualities they bring to the
committees.
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Part Two

1. Members of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of BankDhofar (SAOG) consists of the following:

Name of

Director

1 | Eng. Abdul Hafidh Salim Rajab Al Aujaili

Chairman
Non-Executive

Basis of
Membership

No. of
Other
Director-
ships
Held

2 | Sheikh Hamoud Mustahail Ahmed Al Mashani

Vice-Chairman
Non-Executive

3 | HH. Sayed Taimoor Bin Asa’ad Al Said

Member
Non-Executive

4 | HE Ahmed Abdullah Sulaiman Moqaibel

Member
Non-Executive

5 | Mr Ali Ahmed Al Mashani

Member
Non-Executive

6 | Mr. Mohammed Yousuf Alawi Al Ibrahim

Member
Non-Executive

7 | Mr. Ahmed Said Mohammed Al Mahrezi

Member
Non-Executive

8 | Mr. Saleh Nasser Juma Al Araimi

Member
Non-Executive

9 | Mrs. Najah Musallim Al Kiyumi

Member
Non-Executive

The Board of Directors held 10 meetings during 2008 as follows:

- 16 January 2008
- 25 June 2008

- 8 November 2008

- 28 January 2008
- 31 August 2008

- 16 December 2008

- 23 March 2008

- 17 September 2008

Independent Shareholder
Director

Independent Nonﬁhareho!der
Director

Independent Non-S_harehoIder
Director

Independent Non~S_harehoIder
Director

Independent Non—SharehoIder
Director

Independent Non-Shareholder
Director

Independent Non-Shareholder
Director

independent Non-S_harehoIder
Director

Independent i\!Of“S'hareholder
Director
- 20 May 2008

- 14 October 2008
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‘ ‘ 2. Executive Committee charter, by laws and rules established by the Board of
! ‘ Directors’ Benefits (Amount ) i
| in RO) The Committee consists of four members with proper Blifetare.
1 ‘ Capacityct No. of experience, skills and initiative. The objectives of the - Toidentify the risk areas of the Bank's operations to be
: Name of Director Werbarshi fﬁﬁﬁ'ﬂﬁ Executive Committee is to discharge responsibilities on covered in the scope of the internal and external audits
' ‘ Feas Paid Reg‘““e’aet;"" behalf of the Board in deciding on specific policy matters during the year.
ropos . 1 . : .
| demanding in-depth study and analysis, deliberation - 1o monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit
‘. , : - and interactive consideration and decisions on micro function and approve the audit plan as well as the
‘ T Eng. Abd“' Hafidh Salim Raja In Personal Capacity 10 10,000 17,990 matters of business beyond the powers delegated to the availability of adequate resources {personnel and
Al Aujaili management, but considered less important to receive the tools).
sheikh Hamoud Mustahail Ahmed Eanadt 9 8,400 11,990 full Board’s attention and time.
‘ g i In Personal Capacity - To recommend the appointment/change of the
‘ . . 3600 1990 The Board members of the Executive Committee are: external auditors and determine and review their
3 | HH. sayed Taimoor Bin Asa‘ad Al Said In Personal Capacity : ’ terms of engagement.
‘ Representative of No. of - To meel the external auditors and hear their views
‘ Dhofar International Name of Director Designation | Meetings before forwarding the annual financial statements to
‘ 4 | HE Ahmed Abdullah Sulaiman Mogaibel | Development & 9 7,800 14,989 Attended the Board for approval.
' Investment Holding Eng. Abdul Hafidh Chairman - To repert and bring to the attention of the Board
‘ Company (SAOG) . Salim Rajab Al-Aujaili Ef the'“ 5 any matters of concern with regard to the foregoing
ommitiee and any material accounting or auditing concerns
- i In Personal Capacit 9 6,400 11,990 : .
‘ 5 Mr. Ali Ahmed Al Mashani pacily . Mr. Ali Ahmed o - 4 identified as a result of the external or internal audits,
: Al Mashani ' or examination by supervisory authoritie
‘ 2 Mr. Mohammed Yousuf Alawi In Personal Capacity 8 8,200 13,489 o y sup y authorities.
Al Ibrahim Mobarmod — g The Members of the Audit Committee are:
. r';/'.}f.N?hhmec.j 5aid Mohammed In Personal Capacity 10 8,900 14,989 B Mahiesi
, ahrezi . :
| P———— Mrs. Najah Musalim Al Hemier 3 No. of
) e r Name of Director Designati i
8 | Mr. Saleh Nasser Juma Al Araimi Public Authority for 8 6,300 14,989 Kiyumi e ,Tt:s::g;
. - 5 e
Social Insurance . The Executive Committee held 5 meetings during 2008.
: Chairman
Representative of 600 i . _ HE Ahmed Abdullah ‘i
9 Mrs. Najah Musalim Al Kiyumi Ministry of Defense 10 ! ' » Audit Committee ' Sulaiman Mogaibel g e'tt 6
. _ . ommittee
pension Fund - The Audit Committee was formed in 2001 by the Board HH. Sayed Taimoor Bin
- i 765 of Direct i i i iecti '
10 | Sheikh Salem Mubarak Al Shanfari In Personal Capacity 2 1,200 . with the following main objectives and Asa'ad Al Said Member z
- responsibilities: :
. - - Sheikh Hamoud
11 | Mr. Abdul Aziz Ali Al Shanfari * In Personal Capacity 2 1,2 - Tofocus the attention of the Board and top management Mustahail Ahmed Al Member 6
Representative of of the Bank on the importance of strong financial Mashani
_ oo 765 reporting and risk management.
12 | Eng. Saeed Salim Al Shanfari * Dhofar Catile Feed 2 1,200 _ . M. Moh.ammed Yousuf Member 4
(SAOG) - To monitor the adequacy of internal controls in the Al Ibrahim
TOTAL 71,800 128,200 Bank and to take appropriate steps to improve them
where required. The Audit Committee held 6 meetings in 2008.
. : ; ] f .
* sheikh Salemn Mubarak Al Shanfari, Mr. Abdul Aziz Ali Al Shanfari and Eng. Saeed Salim Al Shanfari were members of the Beard o - To monitor the Bank's compliance with legal and
Directors up to end of January 2008. regulatory provisions, its Articles of Association
p ¢
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4. Risk committee of the Board of Directors

The Risk Committee of the Board was formed in October
2004 by the Board of Directors {0 focus on issues relating to
Risk Management policies and pracedures on a Bank-wide
basis by arriving at a judicious policy decision collectively.

Roles and Responsibilities:

To understand the risks undertaken by the Bank and
ensure that they are appropriately managed.

- To develop risk policies, limits and procedures after
assessment of the Bank’s risk bearing capacity.

- Toidentify, monitor and measure the overall risk profile
of the Bank.

- To verify models used for pricing complex products and
transfer pricing.

- 1o review the risk models as development takes place
in the markets and also identify new risks.

- To ensure that the risk policies developed clearly
spell out the quantitative prudential limits on various
segments of Bank's operations.

- 1o build stress scenarios to measure the impact of
unusual market conditions and  monitor variance
between the actual volatility in portfolio values and
those predicted by the risk measures.

Y

- To monitor compliance with various risk parameters by
business lines.

- 7o hold the line management accountable for the risks
under their control.

- To oversee and ensure the implementation of (8Os
guidelines on risk management systems in Banks.

The members of the Risk Committee are:

No. of
Name of Director Designation Meetings
Attended
Chai
Mr. Saleh Nasser jurmna firnan
Al Araimi o e 3
Committee
H.H. Sayed Taimoor Bin
Asa'ad Al Said Mierer !
Mr. Mohammed Yousuf
Alwai Al Ibrahim Member 3
Sheikh Hamoud
Mustahail Ahmed Member 3
Al Mashani

The Risk Committee held 3 meetings in 2008.

5. Human Resources Strategic Committee of the
Board of Directors:

The Human Resources Strategic Committee of the Board
of Directors was formed in March 2005 by the Board to
ensure that the overall human resources developments at
Banl level are as per the strategic direction of the Bank.

At a strategic level, the Committee is responsible for
reviewing and monitoring the following:

- Ensure manpower plans take into account, the strategic
and specific resources requirements at the Bank to
achieve strategic plans.

. Review the Omanisation plans and ensure certain
defined positions are ear-marked for prospective
omanis within a prescribed period of time.

_ Review exit interviews and note any dismissals
or resignations for middle management and top
management.

- Review the recruitment policy adopted by the Human
Resources Department.

. Review the qualifications and experience of specific
candidates for the positions at the top management
levels.

- Review and monitor compensation and reward policy
and procedures.

- Review and monitor training and development policy
and process.

The members of the Hurnan Resources Committee are:

: No. of

Name of Director Designation Meetings
Attended

Mr. Ahmed Said CHginnTgt

Mohammed Al Mahrezi ofithe . 3

Committee

Mr. Mohammed Yousuf

Alwai Al Ibrahim AT 3

Mrs. Najah Musalim

Al Kiyumi Member 4

The Human Resources Strategic Committee held 3 meetings
in 2008.

(
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6. Directors’ Remuneration and Executives Pay

As all members of the Board are Non-Executive Directors,
no fixed salary or performance-linked incentives are
applicable. The Non-Executive Directors are paid an annual
remuneration and sitting fees for attending the Board/
Committee meetings. Directors’ proposed remuneration
and sitting fees paid during 2008 are as follows:

Proposed Sitting
Remuneration | Fees Paid Io,t al
RO ‘000 RO ‘000 RO*000.
Chairman of
the Board 18.0 10.0 28.0
Board
Members 110.2 61.8 172.0
Total 128.2 71.8 200.0

The Bank’s top five executives, namely the Board of
Directors Advisor, the Chief Executive Officer, General
Manager - Strategy & Planning, General Manager -
Wholesale Banking and Deputy General Manager- Support
Services have received the following in 2008:

Performance
Salaries Bonus & Total
RO ‘000 Others RO ‘000
RO 000
Top five
Sscaiees 612.0 737.0 1,349.0

7. Compliance with Regulatory and Control
Requirements

The Bank adhered to and complied with all relevant
requlatory requirements in the last three years except
one instance in 2007 when the Bank was penalised for
RO 2,500 by one of its regulator. The Bank has taken
all corrective and necessary measures to avoid similar
instance in future.

Also the Bank complied with all provisions of the Code
of Corporate Governance issued by the Capital Market
Authority.

/
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8. communication with Shareholders and
Investors

The Bank publishesits quarterly interim financial statements
and also hosts these and other relevant information at its
website (www.bankdhofar.com). The quarterly results are
published in two local newspapers in Arabic and English.
These results can be obtained by shareholders either from
the Bank or Muscat Securities Market (MSM).

The management provides regular updates to the market
on the Bank’s performance and new developments. The
Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of
this annual report.

9. Market Price Data

a. Share Price Movements

The high/low share price information of the Bank during
the financial year ended 31 December 2008 compared
with Muscat Securities Market Index is as follows:

BankDhofar MSM

4905 share Price (RO) Index

Closing

Closing

January 0705 | 0.620 | 0.665 9,172.11
February 0.795 0.670 | 0.777 | 10,362.81
March 0.830 | 0.765 | 0.806 | 10,102.57
April 1.000 | 0.835 0.806 | 11,210.97
May 0.950 | 0.850 | 0917 | 11,554.69
June 1.100 | 0.880 | 0.894 | 11,323.04
July 0.910 0.710 | 0.756 | 10,737.10
August 0.800 | 0.635 | 0.660 9,493.75
September 0.700 | 0.545 | 0.564 | 8,493.56
October 0.564 | 0370 | 0.393 6,209.96
November 0.450 | 0342 | 0.438 | 6,263.86
December 0.421 0329 | 0.370 5,441.12

b. Major Shareholders

The following are the major shareholders who own more
than 5% of the outstanding shares as al 31 December
2008:

7

shareholder ownership

Dhofar International Development and

Investment Holding 30.90%
Company (SA0G)

Civil Service Pension Fund 10.00%
Ministry of Defense Pension Fund 8.57%
public Authority for Social Insurance 8.46%
Malatan Trading and Contracting LLC 7.45%
Qais Omani Establishment LLC 6.46%

10. Profile of the Statutory Auditors

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu is an organisation of member
firms around the world devoted to excellence in providing
professional services and advice. Delaitte is focused on

client service through a global strategy executed locally
in over 140 countries. With access to the deep intellectual
capital of approximately 165,000 people worldwide,
Deloitte delivers services in four professional areas: audit,
tax, consulting, and financial advisory services.

Deloitte & Touche in the Middle East is among the region’s
leading professional services firms, providing audit, tax,
consulting, and financial advisory services through 25
offices in 14 countries with over 1700 partners, directors
and staff. The Oman Practice currently has three partners
and over 60 professionals.

11. Acknowledgement

The Board of Directors acknowledges confirmation of:

- lts responsihility for the preparation of the financial
statements in accordance with the applicable standards
and rules.

- Review of the efficiency and adequacy of internal

control systems of the Bank and that it complies with
internal rules and regulations.

There are no material matters that affect the
continuation of the Bank and its ability to continue its
operations during the next financial year.

12. Other Matters

» During 2008 the Bank has fully complied with all
directives of the Code of Corporate Governance issued
by the CMA.

o The Statutory Auditors of the Bank are Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu. The Audit fees paid or payable to auditors
for 2008 is RO 34,750.

» The last Annual General Meeting was held on 28 March
2008 and the last Extraordinary General Meeting was
held on 14 October 2008.

o All board members attended the last Annual General
Meeting.
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oman’s Economy and outlook

The first three quarters of 2008 had been an extraordinary
performance for oman’s economy where it experienced 3
nominal GDP growth in excess of 45% on average reaching
a high of 52% in 3" Quarter 2008 boosted by high average

oil prices.

The average oil output in 2008 reached 756,000 barrels
per day, an increase of 6.4% from 710,000 barrels per
day in 2007 but short of the 790,000 bpd target set by
the government in its 2008 budget. The budget surplus
totaled RO 1.979 billion during January-November and this
is expected to surpass the RO 2 billion mark by December, a
record for the country’s fiscal history. Higher oil output and
prices pushed Oman’s total revenue to an all time high of
around RO 7.77 billion during the first 11 months of 2008,
well above the total revenue of 2007, while oil export
earnings account for more than 70% of total revenues at
RO 5.439 billion.

The Muscat Securities Market (MSM), on the other hand,
suffered a setback dropping 40% in 2008. The M5M
gained 34% since the start of the year touching an all-
time high of 12109.10 in June before dropping down to
close at 5441.12 as a result of the financial and credit
crisis worldwide leading to a free fall in commodities and
equities. Ol prices tumbled more than 70% from the July
peak of USD 145 per barrel which in turn affected the
sentiment of the MSM index.

Going forward the Oman economy is expected to face a
challenging year under the present economic condition
worldwide as oil prices are expected to remain well below
the 2008 average price of USD 95 perbarrel. The government
is taking a bold step to increase spending as compared
with the budgeted total for 2008. The total expenditure for
2009 has been estimated at RO 6.4 billion as compared to
RO 5.8 billion, an increase of RO 624 million or 11%
from 2008. The 2009 budget projects a deficit of
RO 810 million based on revenues of RO 5.6 billion and
spending of RO 6.4 billion based on budgeted oil price
of USD 45 per barrel while the government projects an
economic_growth of 1%. This is an important step as it

signals a strong message to investors both within and
outside that the government is comrmitted to sustain the
Oman economy against the backdrop and slump in oil
prices and crippling global financial crisis.

strategy & Planning

In 2008 BankDhofar established a new Strategy @ Planning
Department to guide the implementation of the Business
strategy  (2008-2012) that had been developed in
consultation with Booze Allen Hamilton in late 2007. The
executive launched the strategy in a series of major ‘town
hall’ meetings across Oman 1o communicate our New
vision to be ‘a leading Omani bank that everyone wants to
work for, do business with and invest in.

Throughout 2008, our management team and staff have
demonstrated their commitment o ournew strategicintent
to transform into a high performance organisation and to
outperform in growth and profitability. This commitment
to a common goal was recognised in the Bank’s financial
results for 2008, despite the global financial crisis that has
developed in the last quarter.

In 2008, our strategy called for a particular focus on the
management of our human resources. several important
achievements are worth mentioning including  the
development of our Human Resources function through the
recruitment of a number of talented professional staff, the
establishment of a biannual performance review process,
and the review of our remuneration strategy, including the
establishment of a new profit participation scheme. This
focus on our people will continue in 2009 with significant
investment in our training programs to ensure that staff
have the skills required to develop professionally and

deliver further strong results for the Bank.

Looking forward, our strategic focus will be on the
development of our technology and business processes,
while continuing to focus on the recruitment and
development of our people.

Corporate Communications & Marketing

As a result of our new strategy, 2008 also saw the
establishment of a new Corporate Communications and
Marketing function within the Bank aimed at improving
the Bank’s profile in the marketplace. We have enhanced
our corporate branding and visibility; our branches now
are more customer friendly and have adopted a new
look. The department also has worked on enhancing our
communication within the Bank and externally with our
customers.

Wholesale Banking Group

In line with the recommendations made by Booze Allen
Hamilton, an organisational restructuring was carried outin
2007 and 2008 as a result of which the Wholesale Banking
Group was created consisting of the Corporate Banking
Department, Project Finance & Syndications Department,
small & Medium Enterprises (SME) Department, Remedial,
Tr.ade- Finance Sales and Corporate Advisory & Structured
Finance Departments.

The rationale behind this change was to focus on
59‘gme'ntation of the Corporate market and provide the
full range of Corporate services under a single umbrella.
During the year staffing of key positions was taken through
induction of highly qualified and trained professionals.

In the backdrop of a rapidly changing economic profile
of the country, increased competition in the sector and
t.hie evolving banking regulatory regime, we believe
that the Wholesale Banking Group will spearhead the
‘fgtur.e growth for the Bank. It is our objective to be the
'-B_ank of choice’ for corporate customers in Oman and
cater to all their banking requirements and services. To

‘achieve this the Bank is continually streamlining internal

procedures, removing bottle-necks and hiring experienced

professionals committed to deliver corporate banking

services of the highest standard. The Banl¢ is also currently
ypgrading its technological platform for providing efficient
d_.eiwery channels to its Corporate customers which include
the provision of internet-based banking facilities.

/

/

In 2008, despite the visible downtrend in some of
the economic sectors all the lending arms of the
Wholesale  Banking ~ Group  have  performed
exceedingly well. This was possible due to leveraging of
the existing relationships to increase our expasure to the
extent possible, growth in new Corporate and SME lending,
growth in the Project Finance/Syndicated Loan portfolio
and growth in overseas lending. Also we have been able
to lend to companies with larger fund requirements in
consortium with regional banks.

Corporate Banking Depariment

The Corporate Banking Department provides Corporate
Banking products - both funded and non-funded and
has been instrumental in developing the Bank into 3
‘Relationship Bank’. Typical products extended by the
department include term loans of various maturities both
for capital expenditure and working capital requirement,
Letters of Credit, Loans against Trust Receipts and
Guarantees. The customer base of the Corporate Banking
Department, spans over a wide range of industries
including Trading, Manufacturing, Services and Contracting.
Depending on the industry sector, the banking products
are suitably devised to effectively cater to the particular
requirement of the sector.

Every customer or a group of customers is assigned a
specialist relationship executive, who is in constant touch
with the customers to understand their requirements and
offer suitable services and products on most competitive
terms. The emphasis is on the development of individual
financial solutions that are suited to the particular needs
of the customers. The executive also liaises with other
departments of the Bank to facilitate prompt delivery of
the required services and products to the satisfaction of the
customer. The Bank considers these relationship executives
as vital links with its customers. The department has also
embarked upon supporting the Relationship Team with a
team of dedicated Credit Analysts, which will drastically
improve the turnaround time to the customers and will
also imprave the control mechanism substantially.
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As a part of the Bank’s increased emphasis on Trade Finance,
a special cell has been created to attend to specialised
requirements of the customers in this area. The objective
is to have a continuous interaction with the customers in
order to provide effective solutions in the area of Trade
Finance. The department has already witnessed a jump in
the business volumes and revenue in 2008 and the trend

is expected to continue in 2009 as well.

Project Finance & Syndications Department

In line with the Government of Oman’s continuing
initiative a number of projects of national importance,
requiring considerable investment are being implemented
at a rapid pace. BankDhofar has taken a conscious decision
to actively participate in financing of these projects within
its exposure norms. Accordingly, a separate department
had been carved out to focus on these opportunities which
requires specialised skills and close interaction with other
local and international banks.

oOver the years the Bank has participated in several
important local projects including the projects of Oman
India Fertiliser Company LLC, Schar Aluminum, Oman
LNG, Oman Gas, Salalah Port, Oman Refinery (expansion),
Octal Petrachemicals and the six power and water
projects. The Bank has in place the technical capability
to independently lead-arrange funds for mid-cap projects
and has a strategic tie-up with regional and international
banls for the purpose of ensuring full participation. A start
in this direction has been made with lead-arranging the
funds for various projects taken up by reputed companies.
Realising the lending potential across the border the Bank
has increased its participation in respect of cross-border
deals within the permitted regulatory ceiling. The Bank is
also making a foray into the provision of Advisory Services
for Projects and Corporates and is in the process of building
a suitable team.

Going forward over the long term we envisage a host
of lending opportunities in the Infrastructure, Ol & Gas,
Construction and Tourism sectors taking into account the
large Government sponsored projects as well as those
privately sponsored. However, against the backdrop of the

current global economic and financial crisis we expect a
slowdown in the launching of new projects especially in
the first half of the year.

Mid Sector Corporate Division & Business Banking Unit

The Mid Sector Corporate Division & Business Banking
Unit has recently been set up as the SME division in the
Bank. The growth in the economy of the country has
witnessed rapid growth of the Small & Mid Corporate
sector in particular. With the Bank laying more emphasis
on these growing sectors in the economy, the division has
been formed with a focus to cater specially to growing
Mid Corporate sector, while the business banking unit shall
cater to the requirements of smaller business units.

Professional account relationship managers are appointed
to assess the needs of the customers and provide solutions
tailor-made to their requirements. The Bank has been able
to provide the finance needs to this sector with our products
ranging from Funded to Non-Funded, from Short-Term to
Long-Term and from Credit to Trade Services, ensuring
that the customers get finance the way it is best suited
for their businesses. The account relationship managers
also facilitate the custorner’s access to the Bank's other
products and services.

The division endeavours to provide best services to the
customers with faster turnaround time, while maintaining
the quality of the assets of the Bank. Special attention is
provided to the evaluation of the credit proposals and the
risk assessment for each borrower.

Over a longer term this particular segment shall witness
growth commensurate with the growth of the country’s
economy. The focused approach for this particular segment
shall enable the Bank to reap the benefits arising out of
the growth in the segment.

Consumer Banking Group

Distribution Network

It was an outstanding year for the Consumer Banking
Division (CBD) of BankDhofar, as it continued its focus
on providing value-added products and services to the

customers. The Bank continued its growth and expansion
strategy in 2008, strengthening its distribution channels
with the addition of more branches, ATMs and Deposit &
Bill Payment Machines (DBPMs).

The year 2008 saw the addition of 2 new branches at
Mabellah and Salalah Gharbiya, relocated 2 branches - Al
Khuwair and Azaiba, renovated the Muttrah Souq Branch,
installed 6 ATMs (4 offsite ATMs) and 13 Deposit & Bill
Payment Machines (3 of which were installed at Omantel
and OmanMobile outlets in Bhaja, Awgadain Salalah &
Ibri). The year ended with 51 branches, 91 ATMs and 21
Deposit & Bill Payment Machines.

Products
Al Heson

The year also saw the growth of BankDhofar’s flagship
s_;cheme Al Heson savings scheme offering bigger and
better prizes to its customers. The Al Heson savings
scheme is one of the most popular savings schemes in the
market with its unique proposition which gives customers

the opportunity to open an account and get the chance to
win every fortnight.

The Al Heson scheme continued its promise of offering
more prizes every fortnight, and draws for bi-monthly,
quarterly. All this along with other special prizes and draws
for various segments and age groups in the form of gold
for ladies and a Mazen & Mazoon draw for children.

Card Centre

2008 saw a tremendous growth in the credit cards business
= both in terms of new customers as well as outstandings.
A successful campaign coupled with an exciting contest
was conducted for branches and direct sales staff, which
helped in this growth.

The new Chip Credit Card introduced in 2007 was well
received by customers. This chip card has both the magnetic
Strip as well as chip functionality. The chip functionality

offers BankDhofar's Chip Credit Card users complete security

and greatly enhances the procedure of fraud detection at
terminals that are chip-enabled. The Chip Credit Card is

offered on both Visa and MasterCard platforms. Along
with security the Bank’s credit cards come with various
benefits and advantages like privileged access to Oman Air
Airport lounge at Muscat and Salalah, free travel insurance
including accident, baggage and flight delay for card
holder and family, interest-free repayment period of up to
52 days, emergency card replacement, etc.

Special value additions for customers were introduced in
2008. This included a tie-up with the Royal Orchid Lounge
at the Bangkok International Airport, and a tie-up with Al
Shatti Cinema offering free movie tickets to BankDhofar
credit card holders on Fridays. These benefits were
publicised and well received by the customers.

Housing Loans

Our housing loan product was further enhanced with more
flexibility, hence qualification is not limited to monthly salary
but other additional income is also taken into consideration.
Another category of housing loan product for businessmen
and the self-employed has been introduced. The customer
can also mortgage more than one property to qualify for a
housing loan. The product is very competitive in the market
as it offers a low monthly installment, and low insurance.
It also comes along with a free credit card. Housing loans
are available to customers to buy, build or renovate their
homes. Loans are also made available for buying a plot of
land or investing in residential projects. In the year 2008
housing loans were availed by more customers than the
previous years.

Outbound Sales

The Outbound Sales Department consists of Direct Sales
Agents and the Call Centre.

The Outbound Sales Department focused on an expansion
of the team across the country. New direct sales teams
providing home banking service (opening of accounts and
loans in the convenience of customers” homes and offices)
were |aunched in Salalah, Sohar and Shargiah regions.
The team strength was increased in the capital region to
take advantage of the growing market. Frequent training
programmes on products and sales were conducted. As a
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result, new customers were brought into the bank, and
the Direct Sales Team of BankDhofar is a reckoning name
in the market today.

call Centre services were also improved through enhanced
training and introduction of service monitoring tools, such
as mystery shopping and call quality scoring. The Call
Centre strength was increased to 14 call agents under
a supervisor and a manager. call Centre also generated
an increased amount of business through inbound and
outbound customer calling. For the benefit of our customers
the Call Centre now operates 24 hours a day and 7 days
a week. In the period of last 12 months, the Call Centre
has witnessed a significant increase in the number of calls
being handled by staff - from about 60,000 calls to about
90,000. These call volumes are apart from the volumes of
credit card calls and the volumes handled by the IVR.

Treasury & International Banking Division

customer focus has been one of the key areas of the
Treasury department’s business strategy. The Banl provides
a high level of service to its Treasury customers through
up-to-date information about products and markets. The
Treasury Division offers a wide range of treasury-related
services to all of our valued corporate, retail and high net
worth individual customers. The other major functions of
the Treasury are to control the interest rate risk for reserve
holding, exchange rate risk, and liquidity management on
a daily basis, with a view to enhance yield.

We are one of the leading market contributors in
USD/OMR spotand swaps prices. We offer attractive interest
rates on deposits in all major currencies to corporate, retail
and high net worth individual clients. We also offer highly
competitive exchange rates against all major currencies for
spot and forward requirements of our clients.

The Treasury and International Division performed well
in 2008. Foreign Exchange income grew by 42% as
compared to the 2007 figures. During 2008, investment
in international and regional T-Bills, currency swaps, and
corporate relationships with increased business from trade-
related activities played a major role in the robust growth.
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The division is planning to set up a dedicated structured
product desk that will cater to the sophisticated business
community requirements. The desk will provide various
hedging tools, structured in combination of products such
as Interest Rate Swap (IRS), Floating Rate Agreements
(FRAs) and Options.

International Banking Division continued to focus its
efforts to develop mutual beneficial relationships with
financial institutions worldwide. Through a large network
of correspondents, BankDhofar facilitates international
business of its retail, corporate and institutional clients
at competitive rates with a greater emphasis on quality
services. The division also supports and assists in the
areas of trade finance, foreign exchange and building
relationships with financial institutions globally. Despite
the economic turmoil in the financial markets worldwide
the division was responsible for arranging a bilateral loan
of USD 20 Million for 3 years from ING Bank, Netherlands
during the last quarter of the year at a competitive
pricing.

The Banl’s credit ratings from the three international credit
rating agencies are as follows for the year 2008.

Moody's Investor Service affirmed A3/P-2 local currency
rating, A3/P-2 foreign currency deposit rating, and a D+
Bank Financial Strength Rating (BFSR) to our Bank. The
outlooks on all ratings are stable. Fitch Ratings affirmed
our Bank’s rating at long-term issuer debt (IDR) “BBB+"
with a stable outlook and short-term IDR “F2”, individual
»¢" support “2” and support rating floor “BBB+". Cyprus-
based “Capital Intelligence (Cl) affirmed our Bank's foreign
currency long-term and financial strength ratings at “BBB"
and the foreign currency short-term rating at “A3", The
support rating is unchanged at 3 and the outlook for all the
ratings remains “Stable”.

Government Relations and Investment
Management

The Government Relations Department provides valuable
support for the resource mobilization and marketing
initiatives of the Bank. The Investment Management

pepartment offers Brokerage and Asset Management
services. It serves a diversified client base, including
pension funds, corporations, high net worth individuals
and retail clients. The team comprises investment
professionals with several years of experience, who are
flexible and responsive to our clients needs. Our Asset
Management Division currently manages discretionary
and non-discretionary investment portfolios. Despite the
stock market turmoil which negatively impacted investor
confidence during the last quarter of 2008, the department
through its disciplined approach to investing during bull
or bear phases, managed to perform better than the
benchmark Muscat Securities Market (MSM) Index.

Backed by strong research and asset management
capabilities, the team plans to build up the size of
assets under management during the coming year.
The Brokerage Division managed to garner additional
institutional business. It currently offers brokerage services
‘on the Muscat Securities Market and plans to expand this
service to other GCC markets by entering into strategic
tie-ups with brokerage houses in other GCC markets. The
Brokerage and Asset Management Divisicns are supported
by the Research Division which provides research covering
‘the Oman market, as well as a Back Office which serves
the clients reporting requirements. The Back Office was
also involved in the IPOs and rights issues during 2008, for
which our Bank was the collecting banker.

Support Services
Central Operations Division

2008 was a challenging year with the commencement
of the implementation of the Business Process
Re-engineering project by the Strategy & Planning
Department and Central Operations Department. The
department continues to be associated in implementing
.sfa\r'eral key projects such as Cheque Imaging System (CIS),
.E-baﬂking and Core Banking besides the Business Process
ge-engineering (BPR). Along with these projects, Central
Operations Department has been continuously working
on streamlining many work-flows aimed at reducing

the operational burden at the branches and eliminating
operational errors,

The volume of transactions processed at COD continued to
grow steadily. The key reason for this was the continucus
focus by the team to effectively utilise technological
solutions to automate routine processes thereby increasing
the productivity of the team. This also resulted in the
ability of the team to handle the increasing volume of
transactions, efficiently.

rior to commencement of Business Process Re-engineering
project (BPR), the Senior Manager, Central Operations
Department along with the Quality Assurance Manager,
visited several banks in GCC countries and India to have a
first hand understanding of the BPR project, undertaken by
these banks and the benefits on its implementation.

Key Achievements

The following are some of the areas in which we have
streamlined the worldflow at the Bank, through automation
and centralisation:

- Automation of Inward Real Time Gross Settlement
remittances.

- Automation of charges on issue of cheque books.

Automation of follow-up on minors” accounts when
they attain the age of maturity.

- Automation of follow-up of ‘Stop-Payment’ instructions.

- Introduction of operations manual on standing
instructions.

Trade Finance Department

Trade Finance Department provides fund based
credit facilities such as Export Bills discounting and
import financing to our customers as well as non
fund based credit facilities like Letters of Credit for
Imports and Issuance of Guarantees. During the Year
2008, the Bank registered more than 100% growth in
off-balance sheet business viz, Letters of Credits and
Guarantees. In an increasingly competitive market, the
only sustainable path for this achievement is through
customer satisfaction. Our Bank could achieve this target
by providing quality customer service and commendable
turnaround time. To meet the challenges in a turbulent
international market, our Trade Finance team guided our

custorners with their valuable advice and placed necessary 3 ‘]
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checks and balances to avoid fraudulent claims by overseas
traders. This year, International chamber of Commerce
(ICC) introduced new rules in the Trade Finance field viz,,
Uniform  Customs & Practices (UCPG00), International
standard Banking Practices (ISBP) and Uniform Rules for
Reimbursements. Our Trade Finance team, comprising
mainly of Omani staff, successfully assimilated these
developments and provided quality custormer service

Key Achievements in 2008
- Above 100% growth in off-balance sheet business
thereby contributing to the growth of Banlk’s fee based

income without strain on Capital requirement.

. substantial reduction in turnaround time in Issuance
of Guarantees and Letters of Credit by introducing
standard templates and training of operational staff.

- EHimination of fraudulent claims by international traders
by taking timely precautionary measures.

Future Plans

Implementation of Trade Finance Module in Finacle
Core Banking Solution and Internet Banking.

- Increasing the skills and expertise of local staff by
providing cross-functional training to staff as well in
new ICC Rules.

Credit Control

In compliance with the directives of Central Bank of
Oman on best risk management practices, the Bank has
ectablished Credit Control Department (CCD) in 2007 under
support Services Group. This department was formed with
the objective of strengthening of credit risk management
processes through independent review of loan portfolio
so as to bring about the qualitative improvement in loan
administration and control on an ongoing basis.

The Department is entrusted with the responsibility
of implementation of Loan Review Mechanism (LRM),
approved by the Bank’s Board. LRM is a comprehensive
and independent credit review process, distinct from Risk
Management and Internal Audit functions. The scope
of LRM covers evaluation of credit risk assessrnent and
approval processes, adherence to loan palicies/procedures,
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sufficiency of loan documentation, overall quality of post-
dishursement follow up/loan administration, identification
of early warning signals, independent review of risk grading
and provisioning in respect of large, unsecured and critical
borrower accounts handled by Corporate Banking, Project
Finance & Syndication and Small & Medium Sector under
wholesale Banking Division.

Reviews are conducted within three months of the grant of
credit facilities. Findings of such reviews are presented to
the Management Credit Committee at its weekly meetings
on an ongoing basis by independent evaluation of various
credit processes. Such reviews facilitate the concerned
departments to undertake timely corrective measures. All
major findings and important ohservations are reported to
the Board. In terms of regulatory quidelines, at least 30%
of the Corporate loan portfolio is to be subjected to LRM
in a year. However in 2008, CCD had conducted reviews
of around 70% of credit facilities sanctioned by various
authorities for large and critical accounts in Wholesale
Banking Division.

CCD also conducts portfolio reviews to ensure compliance
with various norms on advances as prescribed in the
Bank's Credit Risk Policy appraved by the Board. Since
inception, CCD has taken up review exercises to clean up
the loan database in the system, to improve the quality of
MIS reparts by modification of IT programmes. In line with
the objectives, CCD would continue to play an important
role in reviewing and strengthening various credit risk
management processes and in supporting implementation
of the new Core Banking Solution.

Information Technology

1n line with the strategic plan the Bank has chosen latest
technology based state-of-the-art computer system for Core
Banking, Treasury, Customer Relationship Management
(CRM), Internet Banking and Mabile Banking for its
operations and additional channels for the custemers. The
new computer system would help the Bank to offer new
and innovative products to the customers and would make
the Bank more compefitive. This solution would transform
our branches to customer centric outlets and enable the

Bank to adopt world-class banking practices to offer
differentiated services to the customers. It will help the
Bank to further increase operational efficiencies through
business events automation and process orchestration
eliminating manual tasks resulting in faster turnaround
and processing time.

CRM module of the solution will offer a 360 degree
view of the customer, comprehensive and rich customer
support service facilities for Opportunity Management,
Campaign Management and Incident Management. The

full functionality treasury module of the solution would
enable the Bank to enhance its Treasury operations. The
‘Bank will offer Internet Banking services to Corporate and
Retail customers.

Information Technology division has upgraded the
Bank’s pioneer SMS Banking channel to offer Arabic
pull, Arabic Bulk Messages, Online Bill Payments and
Pre-paid Mobile Top-ups. The Bank introduced additional
10 cash Deposit and Bill Payment machines by offering
new functionalities such as Mabile Top-ups and Enquiry
for bills. The division consolidated databases for various
gpp-lica‘tions reducing database management effort and
improving the availability of systems.

Leveraging the power of Business Intelligence Tool
{ i,njess Objects’, the division has developed a large
imber of analytical reports on historical data-enabling
business divisions to extensively use these analytical
feports for taking strategic and business decisiens.

fﬂsﬁs-“‘part of the strategic plan, the Bank has selected the
' generation ATM Switch solution to support the various
ness requirements such as Europay MasterCard VISA
WV) CHIP Acquiring, EMV CHIP issuing for debit cards,
Internet enabling of our debit cards, enabling of balance
:xer:-lqu'i'ry on International VISA ATMs, This will help deliver
better customer service to our debit card holders. The new

i,s;_t_illjtidn will improve services offered from ATM channel
-and provide better MIS and reporting. It will also help the

.-B-gnk to comply with the major International Payment
Network mandates on EMY, 3DES Security, improved Fraud

‘Monitering Controls and Payment Card Industry Data

Security Standards (PCI-DSS) Compliance.

The Bank signed the agreement for moving its Wide
Area Network to Multi Protocol Label Switching (MPLS)
technology to enhance security and improve network
bandwidth for its branches and ATMs.

The division completed the implementation of the revised
information Security Policies and Procedures across all
Head Office Departments. The Bank has completed the
development and implementation of Information Security
Management System (ISMS) framework in the IT Division
based on 1S0/IEC 27001 standards. An ISMS is a part of
the overall management systemn, based on a business
risk approach, to establish, implement, operate, monitor,
review, maintain and improve information security. The
ISMS includes organisation structure, policies, planning
activities, responsibilities, practices, procedures, processes
and resources.

Human Resources

Human Resource Management (HRM) is an approach to the
management of an organisation’s most valued assets - the
people who individually and collectively contribute to the
achievement of the objectives of the business. To achieve
this, BankDhofar's HR Department has hired additional
management staff (Manager - Recruitment & Career
Development, Manager - Performance Management and
Compensation, Manager - Training and Manager - Payrall
and Administration).

Human Resources at BankDhofar have been integral to
our sustainability and undoubtedly, our success has been
a testament to the excellence we have within the Bank.
We are always identifying, recruiting and developing
promising young Omanis and providing them great career
opportunities in banking. We pride ourselves for being able
to maintain the Omanisation ratio above the siipulated
limit at 91% in the year 2008. This demonstrates our
commitment towards grooming the local talent.

The total staff strength of the Bank increased from 720
in 2007 to 840 by the end of 2008 to support the Bank’s
expansion. Several HR initiatives were implemented largely
to ensure that the collective effort of the organisation is
further strengthened.
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New Graduate Development Program

A Graduate Development Program was launched in
Octaber to train and develop young Omani graduates to
pursue banking careers with emphasis on their strength
and acquired knowledge from their respective field of
studies. A career development path has been mapped
and will be put into action in 2009. To further build up
on this endeavour, career plans are already on the final
planning stage. The training department has been active in
providing simultaneous training sessions within all sectors
of the organisation while classes have been conducted at
the College of Banking & Financial Studies to accommodate
the classroom requirement of the New Graduate Program.

On-Line Assessment

Aimed to eliminate and reduce human error, HR is now in its
final phase in the introduction of the On-Line Assessment
as part of the recruitment process. This will ensure that
applicants throughout the country will be afforded the
same type of approach in their pre-employment testing
through the On-Line Assessment tool.

Welcome Kit

we've all heard the expression; “First impressions aren’t
easy toerase.” This statement holds true in talentacquisition
where, according to recent study, 86% agree that new
hires make their decision about whether or not to stay at
the company within the first six months on the job. The
pressure for organisations to retain talent they waorked hard
to recruit and hire has never been greater, and is driving
the vast majority of all organisations surveyed to pursue
through on-boarding process. BankDhofar HR Department
is focused to make “On Boarding” part of any strategy
that is focused on workforce retention and productivity,
as well as brand management. It is envisioned that we
should begin the on boarding process before the actual
employment start date and what better way to initiate it
than by presenting a well designed Welcome Kit. We see
the “Welcome Kit” as an excellent initiative to present the
Bank to the new employee.

HR Department will endeavour at its best to ensure that
sankbhofar fulfill its destiny to become the “Employer of
Choice”.

Risk Management
a. Risk Management Structure

The primary responsibility of understanding the risks
assumed by the Bank and ensuring that these risks are
appropriately managed, is vested with the Board of
Directors of the Bank. Board has set risk policies, limits
and procedures by assessing the risk bearing capacity of
the Bank.

The overall risk management has been assigned to an
independent Risk Committee of the Board of Directors (RC)
of the Bank, which monitors and controls the overall risk
profile of the Bank. The RC reports to the full Board, on
matters of significance and keeps the Board updated with
the Risk Management process in the Bank. In this task RC
relies on an independent Risk Management Division.

Bank has a well established Risk Management Division
(RMD) with a team of competent and experienced
professionals. The primary responsibility of the RMD
is to ensure on a continuous basis that an effective risk
management framework exists and the various divisions

of the Bank function within this framework. RMD also |

functions as an interface between the Management and
the Board in defining appropriate risk tolerance levels for
various business lines and operating divisions of the Bank ‘
and in ensuring that policies and procedures are tailored to
the defined tolerance levels.

b. Risk Management Strategy

The risk management strategy of the Bank pivots on the

following:

- To understand, measure and manage risk and aim
at ensuring sustained growth of a healthy asseti
portfalio. .

Well-defined and disciplined risk rneasurement

processes and procedures through well documented
authority levels and limits.

- Continuous monitoring and control of these limits at
business unit level and at portfolio level.

Updating various authorities on risk profile of the Bank
and suggest ways for risk mitigation.

ccount on the various identifiable risks and their
management process is given below:

1. Credit Risk

it risk is defined as the possibility that a borrower or
arty will fail to meet its obligation in accordance
eed terms in relation to lending, trading, hedging,
nt and other financial transactions. This risk is
arily managed by dealing with customers of good credit
) thorough and professional credit assessment,
ing collaterals and continuous monitoring of the
ct of the account. Banlk has also in place a Credit Risk
ich encompasses organisational responsibilities,
rudential limits, credit risk rating standards, risk pricing
ids, loan review mechanism, delinquent account
ment and portfolio management.

ank employs experienced and competent staff in the
i corporate banking, provides them with reqular
ing to upgrade and hone their credit skills. Detailed
licies and procedures, strict adherence to the
tion of duties principle, elaborate and well defined
/ levels, periodical audit and examination by the
uditors ensure that the culture of risk permeates
gh' the business divisions supported by a rigorous
ient of checks and balances.

quidity Risk

Risk is the potential inability of the Bank to
aturing obligations to a counter party. Liquidity
iing and management are necessary to ensure that
has the ability to fund it's liquidity requirement
y and to meet current and future potential
such as loan commitments, contingent liquidity
ents and unexpected deposit outflows.

\ :
@ the Bank’s Asset-liability Committee (ALCO) is

le for setting the broad framework for managing
y risk effectively, the responsibility of managing

(

/

the liquidity risk of the Bank, within this frameworl, lies
with the Treasury Division which discharges this function
with the assistance of other business divisions of the
Bank.

The Bank has Board approved policy on liquidity
management which encompasses assessment of liquidity
gaps through cash flow and static approach, reserve
against deposits, lending ratio, mitigation of liquidity risk
and contingency measures, A mid-office cell in the RMD
ensures that the Bank operates within these guidelines.
Mid-office cell has also implemented ALM software which
monitors the liquidity position of the Bank and helps in
managing the liquidity gaps, well in time.

3. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from unexpected
changes in financial prices arising out of changes in interest
rate, exchange rate, bond, equity and commodity prices.
The Bank has major exposure in currency and interest rate
risk.

The major foreign currency in which the Bank deals on
a reqular basis is the US Dollar. The established parity
between US Dollar and Rial Omani substantially reduces
this risk. However, in order to control currency exposure
risk, limits for intra day and overnight positions have been
set up in addition to currency wise stop loss limits. The
Central Bank of Oman (CBO) has also set prudential norms
for the net open position to restrict the banks from taking
undue currency exposures.

The Bank manages the interest rate risk by matching the
re-pricing of assets and liabilities and operating within the
set gap limits. Foreign currency loans are linked to LIBOR
( London Inter-bank Offered Rate) and re-priced regularly
to reduce the attendant interest rate risk.

4. Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed internal systems, processes, people
or from external events. The Bank has detailed policies
and procedures that are regularly updated to ensure that
a sound internal control environment exists. Trained and
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competent staff oversee the various operational functions
of the Bank. Tested and up-to-date disaster recovery plans
exist to provide normal banking services in the event
of any unforeseen disruption to business. The Bank has
also issued detailed guidelines to the operating units and
branches on identifying potential operational risks and
to put in place appropriate key controls to mitigate such
risks.

Risk Management Division (RMD) also conducts regular
training programmes for staff at various levels to
inculcate ‘risk awareness’ and to spread the general ‘risk
management culture’ in the Bank.

¢. Initiatives: For further enhancement in the risk
management process:

- The Bank has the Moody’s Risk Adviser (MRA) credit
rating model, a globally reputed credit analysis
tool that aids in assessing the credit risk in lending
proposals. The Bank developed a new credit risk
rating framework to assess the credit risk of the
borrower abjectively. The revised system of grading,
shall be further strengthened to take into account the
collaterals available, which can be used in pricing the
loan assets. In addition to risk grading, the corporate
credit proposals are reviewed by the RMD whose
observations form an impartant input in the credit risk
management process.

The Bank has implemented a front-end software
package for effective Asset and Liability Management.
The system shall provide error-free data for effective
liquidity gap management and interest rate risk.

- A system Lo conduct stress test with assumed stress/
worst case scenarios of credit risk, interest rate risk,
foreign exchange risk and equity price risk on a
quarterly basis is in place to assess the impact on the
Bank’s capital adequacy and profitability under these
stress scenarios. Besides regular stress tests, the Bank
conducts various tests to understand the impact of
current economic scenarios on its portfolio.

d. Basel Ii The ratio of total non-performing advances (NPA) to gross
reduced to 3.55% at the end of 2008 from 4.85%
e end of 2007 due to concerted efforts from all the
tments concerned. Bad debts coverage ratio was

v at 132.5% at end December 2008.

(BO directed that banks operating in the Sultanate of Oman
are required to do computation of their capital adequacy
under Basel Il with effect from 1 January 2007. As per
the CBO directives, the Bank has adopted the Standardised
Approach for Credit Risk and the Basic Indicator Approach
for Operational Risk. The Bank is confident that with the
Risk Management Processes established within the Bank
and their continued upgradation, the Bank will assume
more advanced approaches of Basel I to adopt best risk
management practices and improve the quality of the

was creditable growth of 44.04% in customer
0sits from RO 674.5 million at the end of 2007 to RO
6 million at the end of 2008. This reiterated the trust
confidence reposed by the custorners in our Bank.

position of customer deposits at the end of 2008

assets on its books.

RO Million
2008 2007
197.5 178.1
163.9 142.9
606.5 351.4
3.7 2.1

971.6 ‘

Financial Performance

Despite the global financial unrest during the last quarter
of the year the Bank continued to achieve good results
throughout 2008. The total assets of the Bank crossed the
“One Billion” mark to reach RO 1,323.8 million as compared
to RO 955.12 million at the end of 2007 signifying a
suslained growth of 38.6%. The gross loans and advances
to customers stood at RO 1,068.7 million as compared to
RO 750 million at the end of 2007 reflecting a double digit
growth of 42.49%.

674.5

10lders” Equity

Bank accomplished one of the largest rights
in  the market raising a capital of
7 million through issue of 176.9 million ordinary
shares to its existing sharcholders. As a result,
olders’ equity at the end of 2008 increased

An analysis of our loans and advances portfolio as at local
31 December 2008 aleng with the comparative figures for

the prior period is as follows:

Sarticulars RO Million . 34 milliﬂn from RO 110.4 million at the end of
2008 2007 the end of 2008 an amount of RO 2.37 million

Overdrafts 102.5 73.1 nsfg‘[r.ed to legal reserve being 10% of net profit.

Loans 873.8 621.8 bordinated bonds reserve balance of RO 7.36

Loans against trust receipts 67.8 38.2 as added back to retained earnings as the bonds

Bills discounted 35 3.2 during the current year. Further, an amount of

Advance against credit cards 79 4.7 million was transferred to subordinated loan

Others 13.2 9.0

f.j::;::,:s and advances to 1,068.7 750.0

Less: Allowance for impairment 50.3 45.4

Net Loans and Advances

The analysis of shareholders’ funds at the end of 2008
along with the corresponding figures for the prior period
is as follows:

Particulars fulhen
2008 2007
Share capital 70.77 53.08
Share premium 58.51 5.43
Legal reserve 14.61 12.15
Subordinated bonds reserve - 7.36
Subordinated loan reserve 10.27 2.57
Proposed distribution-cash 10.97 13.27
Proposed distribution-bonus
shares 418 ’
Investment reserve revaluation 0.24 3.58
Retained earnings 19.88 13.06

Total Shareholders’ Equity | 188.43 | 110.50

As a result of the increase in shareholders’ equity the net
assets per share reached RO 0.266 at the end of 2008
compared with RO 0.208 at the end of 2007.

Income Statement

Particulars (0. 000)

2008 2007
Net Interest Income 39,899 30,356
Fees and Commissions 4,245 2,774
Other Income 12,020 10,910
Operating Income 56,164 44,040
Total Operating Costs (21,105) | (16,964)
Operating Profit 35,058 27,076

Net Profit ’ 23,686 l 22,790
The Bank achieved good results in all key areas. The net
interest income earned until December 2008 improved
significantly by 31.44% to reach RO 39.9 million for the
year ended 2008 from RO 30.36 million for the year ended
2007, Non-Interestincome increased by 18.9% and reached
RO 16.27 million at the end of 2008, net fees /commissions
and profit from foreign exchange recorded growths of 53%
and 34.04% respeclively. As the stock markets across the
world started tumbling from the last quarter of 2008, the
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investments were marked to market and the impairment
was charged off to the income statement. The total impact
in the income statement due to impairment was RO 4.86
million.

Although the total operating expenses increased by
24.41% from RO 16.96 million in 2007 to RO 21.105 million
in 2008, the cost to income ratio improved to 37.6% as
compared to 38.5% last year, indicating better increase in
revenue aver costs.

The amount of additional provisions for impaired loans
made in 2008 was RO 5.4 million and the recovery from
provisions was RO 2.35 million.

The net profit in 2008 grew by 4% reaching RO 23.69
million compared with RO 22.79 million in 2007. The
earning per share (EPS) increased from RO 0.043 in 2007
to RO 0.044 in 2008.

The Board of Directors proposed to pay 15.5% cash
dividend amounting to RO 10.97 million and 4.5% bonus
shares amounting to 31,848,224 shares of RO 0.100 par
value each amounting to RO 3.2 million. Also the Bank will
carve RO 7.70 million to be transferred to subordinated
loan reserve,

|
i L
| BankDhofar

it |
el
hotar
| i

. with you

The proposed profit appropriation for 2008 is provided in
the following table:

(RO ‘000)
2008

Particulars

2007

Proposed dividends-cash 10,970 13,271
Proposed dividends-bonus 3185 i
shares

To legal reserve 2,369 2,279
To subordinated bonds i 1,474
reserve

To subordinated loan 7.700 2,567
reserve

From/To retained earning (538) 3,199

Net Profit for the year ’ 23,686 ’ 22,790

Future Prospects

The Bank has in place strategic measures on a proactive
basis to address the global financial crisis. The Bank's
strong financial performance since its inception gives us
the confidence of further business stability in 2009.

T | °
BankDhofar s

Moving forward . with yau

] (In RO “000)
[ For the year

2007

Interest Income 30,356
n-Interest Income 16,265 13,684 8,675 5,584 5187
ing Costs 21,105 16,964 13,614 13,170 12,497
ing Profit
e impairment losses ) 35,059 27,076 21,306 16,810 15,954
ofit From Operations 27,077 25,355 21,976 16,131 12,600
fit for the year 22,790

1,323,820 | 955127 | 694,799 | 618225 | 551293

n Portfolio 1,018,441 | 704,643 | 548819 | 470,937 | 406,503
mer Deposits 971,596 | 674,502 | 497,142 | 452,132 | 421,093
holder's Equity 188,433 | 110,498 93,281 79,405 67,771
70,774 53,082 46,158 41,962 41,962

51 49 47 47 47

91 85 79 79 66

840 720 636 598 579
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Financial Ratios of Last Five Years

As at 31
December
2008

As at 31
December
2007

As at 31
December
2006

As at 31
December
2005

As at 31
December
2004

I- PROFITABILITY

Return on Weighted

9.50% : o+ 8
2006 2007 2008

8.30% ETS

; 21150 | 2237% |  2331% | 19300 |  16.90%
Average Equity
Return on Weighted 4434% |  4593% |  45.68% |  33.80% |  26.40%
Average (apital
Return on Average Assets 2.08% 2.76% 3.07% 2.40% 2.20%
Non-Interest Income to 28.96% | 31.07% | 24.84% |  18.60% |  18.20%
Operating Income
Operating Expenses to 37.580 | 385200 |  38.99% |  43.90% |  43.90%
Operating Income
Ii - LIQUIDITY
Net Loans to Total Deposits 95.97% 91.75% 96.61% 91.90% 89.20%
Total Customer Deposits to 91.550% | 87.83% | 87.52% | 88300 |  92.40%
Total Deposits
111 - ASSET QUALITY RATIOS
Loan Loss Provisions to 4.71% 6.05% 7.71% 8.60%
Total Loans
Non-Performing Loans to 3.580% 4.88% 7.00% 7.70%
Total Loans
Lo LOsS POYISIOns 1o 131.57% | 123.96% 110% 112% 114%
Total Non-Performing Loans
IV - CAPITAL ADEQUACY
BIS Risk Asset Ratio 16.63% | 14.87% | 13.10% | 1530% |  15.30%
BIS Risk Asset Ratio on 13.590% | 10.08% |  11.66% |  13.10% |  13.00%
Tier One Capital
Shareholder’s Equity/ 14.23% | 11.57% |  13.40% |  17.80% |  12.30%

Total Assets

2007 2008

ER’S EQUITY

in RO’ 000

in RO" 000

in RO’ 000
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Branches, ATMs

Payment ‘Machines

A Total of
51 Branches,
91 ATMs &
21 Deposit &
Bill Payment
Machines
Countrywide

C.

d

m
co
—

Cash Deposit &

This map cannot be a reference for international borders.

3ill

KEY
Branches
ATMs

Cash Deposit & Bill
Payment Machines

BankDhofar Branch Network
ilfontact Details

¥

D
24701080 - 24790466 Ext: 406 / 421

i .AzaiBa

24527295 - 24527261 -

Al Khuwair 2

24484880 - 24480008 - 24485554

Al Khuwair

24475090 - 24475701 - 24475702

246894710 - 24694725 - 24694715

Al Khuwair Ministry

24502606 - 24596994

24527292 - 24527293

A 0
24701090
24527295
24483366
24488574

| 24595323

24536132 - 24545026 - 24542826

24451539 - 24451540 - 24451520

24545268
24451542

24510101 - 24510537 - 24510102

24425851 -

Amarat

24876580 - 24876120

1 Greater Muttrah

| Muscat

24425852 - 24424434 - 244233 73

24510468

‘-Muttrah

| 24875829
24793297 - 24707959 - 24706636 24706103
24737865 - 24736614 - 24736606 - 24737066 24739166

24694730

g k]
Barik Diyhia; 25

7
/

1831, PC112Ruwi
378, PC133 Al Khuwair

2717 PC112 Ruwi

1507 PC112 Ruwi

159‘1 , PC130 Aziba

148 PC C 130 Azaiba
1507, PC112 Ruwi

1507, PC 112 Ruwi
56, PC Seeb PC 111 ‘111

1613, PC 114 Muttrah

24712970 - 24714452 - - 24714279

2471 3556

1441, PC 112 Ruwi

| 24750516 - 24790466 24798621 1507, PC112 Ruwi
| 24568351 - 24567671 - 24567673 24567679 108, PC\IEE@@g}gﬂL_
| 24845195 - 24845193 - 24845192 _ 24845173 145, PC120 Quriyat
| 24835854 - 24831090 | 24831892 ‘4%1442 PC112RuW1 -
i ‘wwdskabn 24814127 - 24814126 | 24814128 | 1507, PC 112 Ruwi
, 9 | Wattayah 24565137 - 24566731 - 24565208 24566732 | 1507, PC112 Ruwi o
' BURAIMI | 26845562 - 26840228 26845512 | 21, PC 311 Sohar
_ | Buraimi 25655647 - 7 - 25651696 - 25651989 25651115 [ 278, PC512 Buraimi ‘_
| Barka 26884423 - 26884428 26884451 751, PC320 Barka
| Falaj Al Qabail 267501§§_3§g§gggg7ggzgggzg___kg;f 2sz§g§g14,__:“}209 PC 322 Falaj Al Qabail
| Hafeet 26817646 - 26817991 - 26817992 26817993 | 596 PC 319 saham
|_Khadhra | 26714164 - 26714162 26714163 505, PC 315 Al Suwaiq
| Khaboura 26801686 - 26801028 26805130 | 423, PC326 Khaboura
: 26862102 | 585 PC315Suwaiq
26855277 92, PC 319 Saham
1 o0ha | 26841229 21, PC3115char
0 | Shina 2674&;9;_2@Zﬂ§§g§426748308 | 26748304 434, PC 324 Shinas
i AIGhashab(RuHag) 26878737 - 26875759 26878797 | 216, PC 329 Burg Alradah
| Muladdah 26868544 - 26868553 ' 26868549 | 106 PC347 Muladdah
| Rustaq 26876039 - 26875117 26375591 | 25, PC 318 Rustaq
KHLIYA & DHAHIRA 25410234 - 25411370 25411234 | 83, PC611 Nizwa
| Aragi zsqgggzj‘_g§§g41ze ] 25695047 41490 PC51510raqi
| Barkat Al Mauz 25443466 - 25443460 i | 25443462 | 97, PC 616 Barkat Al Mauz
h 25420021 - 25420292 | 25420387 | 661, PC 612 Bahla
| 25369254 - 25369044 - 25369033 | 25369055 | 307, PC 613 Bid Bid
25340393 - 25340089 -25341016 | 25340204 | 412, PC 614 1zki
| 25692283 - 25689341 - 25689685 | 25690341 | 28, PC517 Ibri -
25410234 - 25411370 [ 25411234 | 83, PC611 Nizwa
25351283 - 25351188 | 25350094 |_199, PC 620 Samail
25571756 - 25571658 | 25570253 | 514, PC 413 Ibra =l
25545867 - 25544350 - 25541912 | 25543710 | 323, PC 411 Sur
25571632 - 25571631 - | 25570646 | 514, PC 413 Ibra
L) | 25553440 - 25553474 ] | 25553446 [ 10, PC 416 Jalan
f=hEEEﬂLéLEEHL___A__‘A_“_ggggzlgl 25557501 25557962 | 294, PC 412 Al Kamil
_{_Mintrib | 25583853 - 25584049 25583510 | 154, PC421 Bediya
| Sinaw 25524663 - 25524367 | 25524823 | 296, PC 418 Sinaw
BRI | 2ssdeerye 7 - 25541255 - 25540256 | 25540615 | 75, PC 411 Sur
-5 _|_Samad A'shan | 25526736 - 2§§g§§§§:ff___'_*4ﬁ_;_ | 25526574 | 123, PC 423 Samad
SRUAR 23292299 - 23294863 - 23291631 | 23293505 | 2334, PC 211 Salalah
- i{. Al Wadi 23211130 23212185 - 23212180 | 23210085 2334, PC 211 Salalah
Jf%@ Bnm3nmm9_wq_ 23225179 2334, PC 211 salalah
_3 | salalah 23290644 - 23292299 - 23204863 - - 23291631 23295291 | 2334, PC 217 Salalah
_4_| Salalah-Al Gharbiah 23297526 - 23297536 - 23298046 23295084 12334, PC21T5alalah
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Locations - ATMs, Cash Deposit & Bill
Payment Machines

Location

MUSCAT

Muscat Branch *
Muttrah Branch *+m
MBD Branch «m
Greater Muttrah *
Wadi Kabir Branch *®
Ruwi Branch + m
_Amerat Branch *

_Qurum Branch # B
Al Khuwair Branch + m
Mabellah Branch #
Al Khuwair Centre Branch #
Al Khuwair Ministry Branch
~Sarooj @
Al Maha Filling Station-Al Khuwair @
Al Khuwair - Pick & Save @
Bausher Branch *
Azaiba Branch x m )
Seeb Airport Branch « m

Seeb International Exhibition @
_Markaz Al Bahja @ @

Al Khoudh Branch +m

Al Khoudh - Omanoil Filling Statione

_ Al Mawaleh South-Shell Filling Station @

" Seeb Town Branch W

Azaiba, Shell Filling Station ®

City Center Lobby Mawaleh @

Mercure Al Falaj Hotel, Ruwi @

Al Maha Souk - Ruwi (Hamriya R/A) @

Al Maha Souk - Amerat @

Al Maha Souk - Ansab @

Al Maha Souk - Wattaya @

Al Maha Souk - Ghubra @

Al Maha Souk - MSQ @

Al Maha Fuel Station - Wadi Al Lawami Seeb @

Muscat International Airport @
Al Maha Fuel Statoin - Mawleh ( Near Wave Project ) @

City Center Lobby Qurum @
BATINAH

Barka Branch + m
Rustaq Branch #

Al Ghashab Branch *
Muladah Branch #
Suwaiq Branch

Al Khadhra Branch #
Khaboura Branch « m
Hafeet Branch +
Saham Branch
Sohar Branch + m
Shinas Branch *

44 Falaj Al Qabail Branch +

_Falaj Al Qabail Drive thru @

_Sohar University, Sohar®
Al Maqasa Souk, Hafeet ®

Al Maha Souk, Musannah @
Al Tarif Souk, Sohar @

Al maha Souk - Al Hazem, Rustaq @

Al Maha Souk - Al Waa|ba'Sohar @
DHAHIRAH

1bri Branch *

Al Iraqi Branch * —i_ﬁ_
Buraimi Branch * o

Buraimi Drive Through @
OmanTel Ibri
DAKHILIYA

Bid Bid Branch *

Samail Branch #

_lzki Branch *

" Barkat Al Mauz Branch *
Al Shafaa - MOD @
Nizwa Branch #

Bahla branch #

Al Maha Souk - Falaj Dariz, Nizwa @
SHARQIYA

Sinaw Branch *
Samad A'Shan *
Ibra Branch * @
Mintrib Branch #
Al Kamil Al Wafi #
.B.B.Ali Branch + m
Al Ees Branch +*
Sur Branch #
Mudhaibi @
DHOFAR

Salalah Branch + m

Salalah Shell Filling Station ®

New Salalah - Al Najaf Street ®
Al Qoaf - Salaam Store ®

Haffa - Sultan Qaboos Street ®
Saada Branch #
Dahareez ®
_Al Wadi Branch+m
_Shell Filling Station, Al Salam Street @
Al Awqadain @

Al Isteqrar Hypermarket @
Al Maha Fule Station, Al Saadah @

Salalah Al Gharbiah Branch « m
Omantel Awgadeen, Salalah

LEGENDS
% BRANCH @ OFF-SITE ATM
B CASH DEPOSIT MACHINE BILL PAYMENT MACHINE

| REPORT ON BASEL II-PILLAR 11
1 DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS




Deloitte & Touche (M.E.) & Co. ||
Muscat International Centre
Location: MBD Area |
P.O. Box 258, Ruwi
Postal Code 112

Sultanate of Oman

Tel: +968 24817775
Tel: +968 24815896
Fax: +968 24815581
www.deloitte.com

Deloitte.

Report of factual findings to the Board of Directors of REQUIREMENTS UNDER PILLAR - IIl OF

Bank Dhofar SAOG

in respect of Basel Il - Pillar 11l Disclosures
sclosure Policy

We have performed the procedures agreed with you and as prescribed in the Central Bank of Oman ("CBO") |
Circular No BM 1027 dated December 4, 2007 with respect to the Basel Il - Pillar lll disclosures (the disclosures) -
of the Bank Dhofar SAOG (the Bank) set out on pages 47 to 57 as at and for the year ended December 31,
2008. The disclosures were prepared by the management in accordance with the CBO's Circular No. BM
1009 dated September 13, 2006 and Circular No. BM 1027 dated December 4, 2007. Our engagement was
undertaken in accordance with the International Standard on Related Services applicable to agreed-upon
procedures engagements. The procedures, as set out in Circular No. BM 1027 dated December 4, 2007, were
performed solely to assist you in evaluating the Bank’s compliance with the disclosure requirements set out

detailed qualitative and quantitative public
provided in accordance with Central Bank
BO) rules and regulations on capital adequacy
el Il issued through circular BM 1009 on
3, 2006. The purpose of these requirements
nt the capital adequacy requirements
I = Supervisory review process. These
‘intended for market participants to assess
on about the Bank's exposure to various risks
onsistent and understandable disclosure
y comparison among banks operating in
 Bank has an approved disclosure policy
isclosure requiremnents set out by the
)man and any other requlatory authority,
ational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and
\ccounting Standards (IAS).

in CBO’s Circular number BM 1009 dated September 13, 2006.

We report our findings as follows:

Based on performance of the procedures detailed above, we found the disclosures free from any material

misrepresentation.

Because the above procedures do not constitute either an audit or a review made in accordance with

International Standards on Auditing or International Standards of Review Engagements, we do not express

hlights of the Central Bank of Oman (CBO)

any assurance on the disclosers. apital adequacy ratio (CAR) at a minimum

Had we performed additional procedures or had we performed an audit or review of the financial statements

. ) standardised approach f it ri
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing or International Standards on Review Engagements, R " o crecil ok for

g Basel Il, using national discretion for:

other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. B ing soencies o5 externl

sment institutions (ECAI) for claims on

Our report is solely for the purpose set forth in the first paragraph of this report and for your information and i

is not to be used for any other purpose or to be distributed to any other parties other than Central Bank of

. . " simple/comprehensive approach for
Oman. This report relates only to the Bank’s disclosures and does not extend to any financial statements 0

Mitigants ( CRM)
all corporate exposures as unrated and
0% risk weight.

the Bank taken as a whole or to any other reports of the Bank.

? (___'___H s

Deloitte & Touche (M.E.)
Muscat, Sultanate of Oman
28 January 2009

tandardised approach for market risk and
cator approach for operational risk.

acy returns must be submitted to CBO on
basis: and

xternal auditors must review capital
eturns,

Member of

Audit . Tax .Consulting . Financial Advisory. Deloitte Touche Tohrm

SEL Il - PILLAR 111 DISCLOSURE

year ended 31 December 2008

2. Scope of Application

Bank has ne subsidiaries or significant investments and
Basel Il is applied at the Bank level only.

3. Range of Disclosures
3.1. Capital Structure

BankDhofar’s capital structure consists of Tier | capital and
Tier Il capital.

The capital base for complying with capital standards
are quite distinct from accounting capital. The requlatory
capital is broadly classified into three categories - Tier |,
Tier Il and Tier 111.

Tier I capital includes paid up capital, share premium, legal
and general reserves and other disclosed free reserves,
including subordinated loan reserves, non-cumulative
perpetual preferred stocks and retained earnings (available
on a long term basis). Bank has increased its Tier | capital
in the month of December 2008 through right issue by RO
70.86 million.

Tier 1l (supplementary capital) consists of undisclosed
reserves, revaluation reserves/cumulative fair gains
or losses on available-for-sale instruments, general
loan loss provision/general loan reserve in
capital, hybrid debt capital instruments and subordinated
term debt subject to certain conditions. Tier Il capital of the
Bank comprises of 45% of investment revaluation reserve
and a general provision of 1.25% of total risk weighted
assels.

loss

The use of Tier lll (short term subordinated debt) is limited
only for part of the requirements of the explicit capital
charge for market risks.

The Bank does not have any Tier Il capital and there are
no innovative or complex capital instruments in the capital
structure,

g |7
gy o
BankDhofar 29
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BASEL Il - PILLAR 11 DISCLOSURE

For the year ended 31 December 2008

The details of capital structure is provided as under:

RO'000
TIER | CAPITAL : 1 Arrialifit
Paid-up capital 70,774
Legal reserve 14,612
Share premium 58,506
Subordinated loan reserve 10,267
Retained earnings 19,880
Proposed bonus shares 3,185
Less goodwill (3,971)
Cumulative unrealized Ios;es (753)
recognized directly in equity

TOTAL TIER I CAPITAL 172,500
TIER Il CAPITAL

Investment revaluation reserve
(45% only)

General Provision (Max of 1.25% of
total risk weighted assets)

Subordinated Loan 23,100
TOTAL TIER Il CAPITAL 38,532
TOTAL ELIGIBLE CAPITAL 211,032

3.2 Capital Adequacy

442

14,990

Bank has adopted Standardised Approach (SA) for
computation of capital charge for credit risk and market
risk, and Basic Indicator Approach (BIA) for operational
risk. Under Standardised Approach for credit risk, Bank
has adopted simple approach for recognising collaterals
in the Banking Book and for risk weighting the claims on
sovereign and banks, credit ratings of Moody’s, S&P o Fitch
is used. Assessment of capital adequacy is carried out in
conjunction with the capital adequacy reporting to the
CBO.

Bank has capital adequacy ratio of 16.63% as against the
CBO requirement of 10%. The Bank's policy is to manage
and maintain its capital with the objective of maintaining
strong capital ratio and high rating. Bank maintains capital
levels that are sufficient to absorb all material risks the
Bank is exposed to and provides market return to the
shareholders. The Bank also ensures that the capital levels

comply with regulatory requirements and satisfy the
external rating agencies and other stakeholders including
depositors and senior creditors. The whole objective of the
capital management process in the Bank is to ensure that
the Bank remains adequately capitalised at all times.

The Bank has in place a capital adequacy framework by
which the Bank’s annual budget projections and the capital
required to achieve the business objectives are linked in a
cohesive way. Capital requirements are assessed for credit,
market and operational risks. The Bank’s capital adequacy
ratios are periodically assessed and reported to the Risk
Committee (RC) of the Board of Directors. Bank also conducts

various stress tests and observes its impact on capital, to

ensure capital adequacy. The composition of capital in terms
of Tier |, I and Il are also analysed to ensure capital stability
and to reduce volatility in the capital structure.

i) Position of various Risk Weighted Assets are presented
as under:

Net
Balances
(Book
Value)*
RO'000

Gross
Balances
(Book
Value)
RO'000

Risl
Weighted
Assets
R0O’000

Details

On balance

1 : 1,401,395 | 1,329,593 | 1,043,047
sheet items

o | Offbalance 0y 560 | 123082 | 123,013
sheet items

3,782 1,256

3,782

3 | Derivatives

Total Credit
Risl¢

Market Risk

1,546,537l 1,456,457 | 1,167,316

Operational
Risk
Total Risk
Weighted
Assets

1,546,537 | 1,456,457 | 1,269,279

Net of provisions, reserve interest and eligible

collaterals

Capital Adequacy:

)

172,500
r 2 Capital 38,532
r 3 Capital &
Regulatory Capital 211,032
ital Requirement for Credit 116,732
al Requirement for Market 1606
| Requirement for 8 590

\
| I Required Capital 126,928
| r 1 Capital Ratio 13.59%
Capital Ratio 16.63%

xposure and Assessment

hich banks are exposed and the techniques
se to identify, measure, monitor and control
are important factors market participants
their assessment of an institution. In this
eral key banking risks are considered: credit
2t risk, interest rate risk in the banking book
onal risk, For each separate risk area (e.g.
, Operational, banking book interest rate
lescribes its risk management objectives and
icluding scope and nature of risk reporting and/
systems and risk mitigation strategies.

‘will fail to meet its obligations in accordance
d terms. Credit risk, therefore, arises from the
ngs with or lending to a corporate, individual,
, financial institution or a country.

of credit risk management is to minimise
losses and maintaining credit risk exposure
table parameters.

Bank has well established credit risk policy duly approved
by the Board which establishes prudent standards, practices
in managing creditrisk and setting up prudent benchmarks,
limits for management of credit risks. Continuous review of
the credit policy is done to keep it in line with the business
environment and regulatory requirements at all times.

Executive Committee of the Board is the final credit
approving autharity of the Bank which is mainly responsible
for approving all credit proposals beyond the authority
level of the management. This committee is also the final
authority for approving investments beyond the authority
of the management. The Management Credit Committee
(MCC) is the management decision making body which
is empowered to consider all credit related issues upto
certain limits.

Credit risk is managed by the Risk Management Division
through a system of independent risk assessment of
credit proposals beyond a threshold limit of RO 100,000
before they are considered by the appropriate approving
authorities. This facilitates the appraving authorities
in making informed credit decision. In addition RMD
approves/reviews grading of obligors, and conducts
reqular analysis of the credit portfolio.

Bank also has established Credit Control Department
which looks after Loan Review Mechanism (LRM). LRM
helps in ensuring credit compliance with the post-sanction
processes/pracedures laid down by the Bank from time to
time. It involves taking up independent account-specific
reviews of individual credit exposures as per the Board
approved LRM policy. Credit Control department also
monitors various credit concentration limits.

Bank has in place a risk grading system for analysing the
risk associated with credit. The parameters, while risk
grading the customers, include financial condition and
performance, quality of disclosures and management,
facility structure, collateral and country risk assessment
where necessary. Maximum counterparty /group exposures
are limited to 15% of the Bank's capital base as stipulated
by CBO and where a higher limit is required for projects of
national importance prior approval of (B0 is obtained.
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Retail lending is strictly in accordance with the CBO
guidelines. In addition to these, there are also country limits
approved by the Board to ensure portfolio diversification in

conducted at higher frequency.

Past dues and impaired exposures are defined in accordance

‘ _ with the relevant €80 requlations. Specific and general o OECD
terms of sovereign risk ratings and geographical exposure. - . . _ of Cred 0 I .
el | S provisions are computed periodically in accordance with 0 . o 0 0
| ' Specific country risk limits have been set up based on . , i po
i fh _ E the CBO regulations as well as other applicable accounting
i the external ratings od the cou?t:es. Bank coluTterpartl\/lr standards. General loan loss provisions equivalent to 10 RO'000 RO'000 RO'00(0 RO/000 RO’00C 207000 R0/000
i g try risk limits. . . .
‘ IEXDdDSUfZS Ale IEstricls t[:jzs ]i“ artiie (OUCT Ty Th 'dm'ts A of the loans categorised as Standard and Special Mention T 132 - 2 3 4 5 6 7
- isi ivi ' i verdrafts . i
| ) mdq ec|1.5|ons e selerghing duesconmiaeion g meeting the latent loan losses are provided for, - 102,577
| T EreeIrpDiiey, reduirements. However, a general loss provision of 2% of the Standard Personal loans 398,349 - - 398,349
| However, in the absence of acceptable external credit  and Special Mention personal loans is created considering f?{;’-f‘agé'mt 67755 536 )
[ rating agency in the Sultanate of Oman, the Bank has  the heightened risk inherent in personal loans. : g ) it
: ther loans 456,371 17,3
obtained the approval of the CB.O to tre§t a!I. corpo.rate i) Analysis of gross credit exposures, plus average s 383 1,705 3 475,459
, exposures as unfateld and a.(cordlng.ly assign risk weight gross exposure over the period broken down by 3466 i ) ] S i
of 100% for computing capital requirements under Basel major types of credit exposure: '
i Il. Every corporate account is reviewed annually and in 21,125 = - . 21125
049 14 019 0

case of special mentioned category accounts, reviews are

Average Gross Exposure

Total Gross Exposures

| others included personal overdraft and others
tries included in column 2

I counterparty type distribution of exposures broken down by major types of credit exposures:

RO'000 RO'000 RO'000 RO'000
Type of Credit Exposure
| | As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 ,
| December December December December X 0 0z Othe : )
\ ‘: 2008 2007 2008 2007 P C(
DO
1 Overdrafts 88,351 68,968 102,577 73,052 S O00¢
. RO"000 RO'000 RO'000 : R
‘ 2 | Loans 763,481 549,138 873,808 621,846 | o Y 0000 0000
i : : I oA | ) ; 81,631 40,21
3 Loans against trust receipts 57,226 36,583 67,791 38,203 69 124 193 ¢
e ] B - 188
4 Other 11,688 10,029 13,180 8,998 6,108 10,504 3,597 20,209 2,949
w | 5 Bills purchased/discounted 3,453 2,068 3,466 3,224 | 930 ] 34195 = 329 35,454 664
‘ il 6 Advance against credit cards 6,244 4,268 7,945 4,717 ‘Ei__ﬁg_og_ i 19,790 60,809 89,058
: 7 930,443 671,054 1,068,767 750,040 11,769 | 33,070 3,350 | 22,644 70,833 44,003
‘ B %5 | 25419 - s 25,774 9,588
| 343 | 19212 - -
m | | o3 19,555 648
10,149 65,260 - 5 75.409 3089
&I | 12731 | 53843 | - 3,571 70,145 23,316
= | 14530 | 398349 | 7886 420,765 503
| ure & Allied activities 5 46
e B | 45 - - 51 6
len
i o e 1358 | 70,386 : 71,744 343
I‘H - L 5 esro | )
l ” | 19,088 - 536 19,624 209
22,557 | 73,869 - 145 96,571 24,357

['I|\I 50 ' 0 873,808 466 | 88,916 068,76 40 51
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Iv) Residual contractual maturity breakdown of the whole portfolio, broken down by major types of credit exposure: cal distribution of amount of impaired loans:

(] D 2 o
=t s Provisions
Sveti i ; ased 0 0 - of which General Specific Advances
Band Gross| o G Reseive made ;
0 disco d ; ross loans provisions | provisions g written- off
Countries NPLs held I interest | during the :
RO'000 RO000 RO'000 RO/000 RO'000 RO000 : : s held year dunngyear
1 Upto 1 month 5,129 57,888 3,420 84,722 151,159 58,776 - >
Ry 1 o i , : R0/000 | RO000 | RO/000 | RO’000 | RO000 | RO000 |  RO/000
2 1-3 months 5,129 60,891 46 1,534 67,600 56,347 1,049,143 37,950 14,794 16,694 18,642 P 0
3 3-6 months 5,129 37,891 - 73 43,093 36,087
4 | 6-9 months 5,129 37,112 - 29 42,270 20,978 o1 § 179 g - - ’
5 9-12 months 528 39,483 - 33 44,645 13,110 1,705 - 17 _ ~ “ _
6 1-3 years 25,644 198,881 ] 397 224,922 51,760 & 2 - _ R _ i
7 3-5 years 25,644 146,367 o 18 172,029 1,349 = ~ _ _ i
8 Over 5 years 25,644 295,295 2 323,049 . ~ ) j _
9 102,577 | 873,808 3,466 | 88,916 | 1,068,767 240,125 1,068,767 | 37,950 | 14,990 | 16,694 | 18,642 | T S

ies included in row 2

f Gross Loans :

o Provision Adv.
: General Specific !
0f which provision | provision Reserve made written

NPLs © held beld Interest | duringthe | offduring _ Movement of Gross Loans during the year

RO/000 RO'000 RO'000 | RO'000 RO'000 R0O'000 RO000 pEETAS ome

Gross loans

1 Import Trade 81,631
2 | port Trade 193 103 1 37 13 - ] R0'000 RO000 R0'000 RO000 RO'000 | RO000
P : 680,733 32,898 573 345 35,491 750,040
3 Wholesale & Retail 20,209 10,098 102 4,931 5,088 51 i 4
4 Mining & Quarrying 35,454 = 355 - - E - 8,632 (10,371) 1,572 73 95 1
5 Construction 60,809 3,158 577 1,284 841 238 551,589 13,279 268 12 3314
' ’ , , 568,462
6 Manufacturing 70,833 844 700 582 287 9 1 (234,556) (11,385) (355) (64) | (2,741) (249,101)
Electricity, Gas & - :
F | e 25,774 - 258 - - - - @) (633) (635)
) Transporl & — , o0 1 1 ] 1 1,006,396 24,421 2,058 366 35,526 1,068,767
Communications ’ ) 14,990 -
436 117 16,141 31,684
Financial Institutions 75,409 - 754 - = - g - 473 130 18,039 18,642
10 | Services 70,145 4,045 661 2,063 1,946 7 X e ‘general provisions held under performing loans and specific provisions under non-performing loans
11 Personal 420,765 9,485 8771 3,490 4,921 380 45
1 agriculture & Allied 51 i 1 . - - - is;.(:. Disclosures for portfolios subject to earlier, the Bank has obtained CBO approval to treat all
B : = B i ed A
13 Governnl1ent 71,744 718 .pproach corporate exposures as unrated and assign 100% risk
14 LN:r:;irr?;ldem 19,624 i 196 i i i 1 has ﬂbtalned CBO approval vide its letter weight on all of them.
15 | All Others 96,571 17 985 5 12 z : . 1;' 2006 touse the ratings of Moodys, i) The Bank is adopting the simplified approach for
‘ (S&P) or Fitch for risk weighting claims collateral recognition under the standardised approach

s and banks. However, as mentioned

6 DTA D 068,76 050 4.990 6,694 8,64 689 60

where 0% risk weight is assigned for the exposures
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covered by cash collateral. The total exposure covered
by cash collateral, which attracts 0% risk weight is RO
60.08 million. All other credit exposures of Corporate
and Retail (except mortgage loans which are assigned
35% risk weight) are assigned 100% risk weight.

i) Bank also conducts stress tests on portfolio basis at
reqular intervals to assess the impact of credit risk on its
profitability and capital adequacy. The same is placed
before the Risk Committee of Board of Directors.

3.3.3 Credit Risk Mitigation: Disclosures for
standardised approaches

The Bank has adopted the simple approach for credit risk
mitigation and no off-setting of the collaterals is done to
calculate the capital requirement. However, the main CRM
techniques followed by the Bank are based on collaterals
which the Bank endeavours to obtain for it's exposures,
as far as commercially practicable. The collaterals mainly
consist of real estate properties, shares listed on the Muscat
Securities Market (MSM), government bonds, unlisted
shares and bank fixed deposits. However, the Bank's
predominant form of eligible collateral as defined by CBO
in its guidelines and for capital adequacy computation
purposes is in the form of cash, acceptable bank quarantees
and shares listed on the MSM main index.

As stated above, the Bank has adopted Simple Approach
under the Standardised Approach where in the set-off of
eligible financial collaterals against the exposures is not
considered. The exposures which have been assigned 0%
risk weight based an eligible cash collaterals amounts to
RO 60.08 million.

Bank is proposing to revise the existing credit risk
rating frameworlc in the next year to further strengthen
credit risk management. The revised credit risk rating
framework shall include more granularity in the rating
grades, mapping the single point score provided by the
rating model to a scale of 1 to 11 and linking the pricing
of the facility to risk rating. Bank shall also develop
required systems for estimation of Probability of Default
(PD), Loss Given Default (LGD) and Exposure at Default
(EAD) in order to adopt the advanced approaches under

Basel Il gradually. The necessary data requirement shall
be identified and incorporated in the new core banking
system to be implemented. With the availability of the
data, a suitable risk based information systemn shall also be
developed. Bank has already started conducting training
programmes on risk management practices for the staff
and such trainings shall be intensified further to ensure
percolation of risk culture across the Bank.

ots, liabilities and off-balance sheet positions
ue to variation in market interest rates.

ity of interest rate risk management rests
etand Liability Management Committee
dically computes the interest rate risk on
ok that arises due to re-pricing mismatches
sensitive assets and liabilities. For the
ing such interest rate risk, the Bank has
tem that tracks the re-pricing mismatches
ing assets and liabilities. For computation
rate mismatches the guidelines of CBO are

The Bank expects to refine the existing risk management
systems and practices on an ongoing basis and with that:
experience approach the (BO with a framework and a:
road map to move to Foundation Internal Rating Based:

approach (FIRB), for it's approval. . :
PP (FIRB) PP g to re-pricing mismatches and the interest

placed to the ALCO regularly and also
imittee of the Board. In addition, scenario
19 @ 200 basis point parallel shift in interest
other currencies and their impact on
nd net profit of the Bank are assessed
nd placed to the Risk Committee with
ve action, if necessary.

3.3.4 Market Risk |

Market Risk is the risk to the Bank’s earnings and capital.
due to changes in the market level of interest rates or prices
of securities, foreign exchange and equities, as well as the
volatilities of those changes. The Bank for International’
Settlements (BIS) defines market risk as “ the risk that
the value of ‘on” or ‘off" balance sheet positions will be
adversely affected by movements in equity and interest
rate markets, currency exchange rates and commodity
prices”. Market Risk has been categorised into interest
rate risk, foreign exchange risk, commodity price risk and

finterest rate risk in the banking book
asis point and 200 basis point parallel

equity price risk. 1

Bank has a comprehensive Treasury Risk Policy whic |
interalia cavers assessment, monitoring and management of
all the above market risks. Bank has defined various internal
limits to monitor market risk and is computing the capital
requirement as per Standardised Approach of Basel 1.

Details of various market risks faced by the Bank are sel
out below:

i) Interest Rate Risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk where changes in market interest
rates might adversely affect a banlk’s financial condition:
The immediate impact (up to one year) of changes in
interest rates is on the Net Interest Income (NII). A long:
term impact (more than one year) of changing interest
rates is on the Bank’s networth since the economic value of

(

/

shift in interest rates in RO, USD and other currencies is
provided as under:

Impact on earnings

(RO in 000%s)

+or-1% +0r-2%

Omani Riyals 1,251 2,502
US Dollars 1,105 2,209
Other currencies 106 272

1) 5 A6 49
i} Foreign Exchange Risk:

Foreign Exchange Risk may be defined as the risk that a
bank may suffer losses as a result of adverse exchange
rate movements during a period in which it has an open
position, either spot or forward, or a combination of the
two, in an individual foreign currency.

The responsibility of management of foreign exchange
risk rests with the Treasury Division of the Bank. The
Bank has set-up internal limit of 40% of Tier | capital to
monitor foreign exchange open positions. Most of the
foreign exchange transactions are conducted for corporate
customers and mostly are on back-to-back basis. Bank has
also defined various limits for foreign currency borrowing
and lending.

Bank also conducts stress tests to assess the impact
of foreign exchange risk on its profitability and capital
adequacy and the same is placed to the Risk Committee of
Board of Directors on a reqular basis.

iif) Commodity Risk:

Commodity Risk occurs due to volatility in the prices of the
commodities. Presently the Bank has no exposure to the
commodity market,

iv) Equity Position Risl:

Equity Position risk occurs due to change in the market
value of the Bank’s portfolio as a result of diminution in
the market value of the equity securities. The responsibility
of management of equity position risk rests with the
investment division of the Bank. The Bank does not hald
trading position in equities. Bank’s portfolio is marked to
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market on a regular basis and the difference in the book
value and market value are adjusted against revaluation
reserve. Bank also conducts regular stress tests on equity
position risk and assesses its impact on profitability and
capital adequacy.

v) The Capital Charge:

The capital charge for the entire market risk exposure is
computed under the Standardised Approach using the
duration method and in accordance with the guidelines
issued by CBO in its circular BM 1009. Bank adopts duration
method in measuring interest rate risk in respect of debt
securities held in trading book. The Bank does not hold any
trading positionin equitiesandin commodities necessitating
capital charge to cover the market risk. Foreign exchange
risk is computed on the average of the sum of net-short
positions or net-long positions, whichever is higher of the
foreign currency positions held by the Bank.

The capital charge for various components of market risk

is presented below :

i e
Interest Rate Risk 7
Equity Position risk 0
Commuodities Position Risk 0
Foreign Exchange Position Risk 1,278

TOTAL \ 1,285

For assessing the market risk, the Bank shall, with the
approval of CBO, graduate to more advanced measurement
techniques from the present Standardised method adopted
by the Bank.

3.3.5 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the potential inability to meet the Bank's
liabilities as they become due. It arises when the banks are
unable to generate cash to cope with a decline in deposits
or increase in assets.

Banl’s Liquidity Risk Management is governed by the
Treasury Risk Policy document approved by the Board
of Directors as well as the provisions of relevant CBO

quidelines on liquidity risk management. The Treasury Risk

policy also incorporates contingency plans and measures
for the Bank so as to be always in a position to meet all
its maturing liabilities as well as to fund asset growth
and business operations. The contingency plan includes
effective monitoring of the cash flows on a day-lo-day
basis, holding of tradable high quality liquid assets, which
may be readily disposed off in sizeable amount etc. The
Bank also has in place adequate lines of credit from both
local and international banks to meet any unforeseen
liquidity requirements.

The Bank monitors its liquidity risk through cash flow
approach and stock approach. Under cash flow approach
Bank generates Maturity of Assets and Liabilities (MAL)
report which captures all the maturing assets and liabilities
into various pre-set time buckets ranging from one month
to five years. The mismatches in various time buckets
indicates liquidity gap and Bank strictly adheres to the
CBO set limit of 15% of cumulative liabilities (outflows)
on mismatches (liquidity gaps) in time buckets up to one
year. In addition, the Bank has also set up internal limit
on mismatches in time buckets beyond one year. Under
stock approach, Bank monitors the liquidity risk through
liquidity ratios, which portrays the liquidity stored in the
balance sheet.

The Treasury department of the Bank controls and
monitors the liquidity risk and ensures that the Bank is not
exposed to undue liquidity risk and at the same time make
optimum use of its funds. The Bank also prepares projected
liquidity report to assess the major liquidity requirement
up to one month In advance. Bank has now put in place
Asset and Liabilities Management (ALM) software, which

can generate liquidity gap report on 3 daily basis to help
management in taking an informed decision to meet

liquidity gaps.

Bank has reconciled the Statement of Maturity of Assets
and Liabilities with the discussions under IFRS (Refer item

no. 35 of the Notes to Financial Statements).

6 Operational Risk

Basel Committee on Banking Supervision has defined
rational risk as “the risk of loss resulting from
equate or failed internal processes, people and
ems or from external events.” This definition includes
| risk, but excludes strategic and reputational risk.
| risk includes, but is not limited to, exposure to fines,

enalties, punitive damages resulting from supervisory
s, as well as private settlements.

k has a well-defined Operational Risk Management
M) policy which interalia includes Operational Risk
, Operational Risk Loss and ORM process. Business
functional units are primarily responsible for taking
'managing operational risk on a day-to-day basis. Risk

ement Division provides guidance and assistance in
identification of risk and in the ongoing operational
management process.

Il has provided three different methods viz., Basic
cator Approach, Standardised Approach and Advanced
rement Approach to compute the capital charge of

(

y

Operational Risk. Bank has adopted the Basic Indicator
Approach for computing the capital charge for Operational
Risk as per €BO guidelines. The approach requires the bank
to provide 15% of the average gross income for the last
three years as capital charge for operational risk.

While the Bank has adopted this approach for capital
adequacy calculation purposes, it is the intention of the
Bank to move to more advanced approach dividing the
Bank’s business into eight business lines and assessing the
operational risk in each of them. The Bank has put in place
a system of collecting and collating data on operational
risk events in the Bank as required by the CBO guidelines.
The Bank has also initiated the process of implementing
best practices for controlling operational risks in various
units of the Bank with tools such as Key Risk Indicators and
Key Control Standards. The Bank shall review the existing
data collection system and strengthen it over a period of
time to build a strong loss data base and to move over to
the advanced measurement system for Operational Risk
with the approval of CBO.
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independent auditor's report peww Al om
to the shareholders of Bank Dhofar SAOG

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Banlc Dhofar SA0G, which comprise of the balance
sheet as at 31 December 2008, and the income statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flows
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes as set out in pages 67 to 111.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
| with International Financial Reporting Standards and the relevant disclosure requirements of the Commercial
Companies Law of 1974, as amended and the Rules and Guidelines on disclosure issued by the Capital Market
Authority, effective 1 October 2007. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;

~ and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

‘ Auditor’s responsibility

0ur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our

! audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with

- ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
 financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of

the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those

risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Bank’s preparation and fair presentation

‘ of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate for the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control. An audit also

\ includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
eslimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

- We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the financial position of
_ nk Dhofar SAOG as of 31 December 2008, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
I@hen ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Inouropinion the financial statements comply, in all material respects, with the relevant disclosure requirements
he Commercial Companies Law of 1974, as amended and the Rules and Guidelines on disclosure issued by
the Capital Market Autharity, effective 1 October 2007.

D Iontte & Touche (M.E.)
scat, Sultanate of Oman
8 January 2009

Member of
It ;Tax .Consulting . Financial Advisory. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu




at 31 December 2008 for the year ended 31 December 2008
a 2007
2008 2007 2’00 ) 2008 2007
UsD’000 UsD’000 Notes RO’000 RO'000 — " 2008 2007
ASSETS Notes RO'000 RO'000
301,946 310,203 Cash and cash equivalents 5 116,249 119,428
;i : ne. q _ . ’ 165,379 134,052 Interest income
6,543 6,532 Financial instruments at fair value through profit 6 2,519 2,515 63,671 51,610
ol (61,745) (55,205) Interest expense (23,772) (21,254)
4 ’
97,626 75,810 Loans and advances to banks 7 37,586 29,187 103,634 78,847 Net interest income 23 39 899 S
2,645,301 1,830,242 Loans and advances to customers 3 1,018,441 704,643 13,387 8,870 Fees and commission income 5’154 3’415
35,811 38,078 Available-for-sale investments 9 13,787 14,660 (1,657) (1,203) Fees and commission expenses ('638) (’
e i | 463)
312,904 185,333 Held t(_)bmatunty investments 10 120,468 71,353 11,730 7,667 Net fees and commission income 4,516 2952
10,314 10,314 Intangible asset 11 3,971 3971 30,517 27.875 Other income iy = :
11,940 11,462 Property and equipment 12 4,597 4,413 145,881 L /749 10,732
. 114,389 Operating income
16,109 12,875 Other assets 13 6,202 4,957 56,164 44,040
- (50,634) (40,475) staff and administrative costs 25 (19,494)
3,438,494 2,480,849 Total assets 1,323,820 955,127 (4,184) . ' (15,583)
, (3,587) Depreciation 12 (1,611) (1,381)
(54,818) (44,062) Operating e : .
LIABILITIES 9‘; 063 70 327) ' i T (21,105) (16,964)
232,891 242,841 Due to banks 14 89,663 93,494 iy ;0 327 Profit from operations 35,059 27,076
2,523,626 1,751,953 Deposits from customers 15 971,596 674,502 (14,208) (8,475) Provision for loan impairment ] (5,470) (3,263)
92,540 79,925 Other liabilities 16 35,628 30,771 6,104 3,935 Recoveries from allowance for loan impairment 8 2,350 1,515
100,000 119,122 Subordinated bonds and loan 17 38,500 45,862 (5) (62) Bad debts written-off @) (24)
2,949,057 2,193,841 Total liabilities 1,135,387 844,629 (12,634) - Impairment of available-for-sale investments (4,864) -
. Financial instruments at fair value through profit
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 132 or loss q 5
183,828 137,875 Share capital 18 70,774 53,082 70,330 65,857 Profit from operations after provision 27,077 25.355
151,964 14,101 Share premium 19 58,506 5,429 (8,808) (6,662) Income tax expense 77 (3,391) 2 ;65)
’ v
37,953 31,555 Legal reserve 20 14,612 12,149 61,522 59,195 Profit for the year 23.686 22 790
26,668 25,791 Subordinated bonds and loan reserve 20 10,267 9,929 Earnings per share basic and diluted
621 9,304 Investment revaluation reserve 20 239 3,582 0.1 0.11  (Rials Omani) 28 0.044 S
88,403 68,382 Retained earnings 21 34,035 26,327
489,437 287,008 Total shareholders' equity 188,433 110,498
3,438,494 2,480,849 Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 1,323,820 955,127
623,701 435,221 Contingent liabilities and commitments 32 240,125 167,560
0.69 0.54 Net assets per share (Rials Omani) 22 0.266 0.208
»
/ o
Mﬁ /
Kris Babicci

Eng. Abdul Hafidh Salim Rajab Al-Aujaili

Chairman Chief Executive Officer

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2008

1 January 2007

Profit for the year
Fair value increase

Net transfer to income statement
on sale of available-for-sale
investments

Total recognised income for 2007

Dividend paid for 2006

Bonus issue for 2006

Transfer to legal reserve
Transfer to subordinated bond
reserve

Transfer to subordinated loan
reserve

31 December 2007

1 January 2007

Profit for the year
Fair value increase

Net transfer to income statement
on sale of available-for-sale
investments

Total recognised income for 2007

Dividend paid for 2006
Bonus issue for 2006
Transfer to legal reserve

Transfer to subordinated bond
reserve

Transfer to subordinated loan
reserve

31 December 2007

Notes

Subordi- Investment

Share Share Legal nated bonds revaluation Retai'ned I
capital premium  reserve and loan reserve earnings Tota
reserve
RO'000 RO'000 RO’000 RO’000 RO'000 RO’000 RO'000
46,158 5,429 9,870 5,888 2,231 23,705 93,281
- - - - - 22,790 22,790
- - - - 3,932 - 3,932
- - - - (2,581) - (2,581)
= 7 = - 1,351 22,790 24,141
- - - - - (6,924) (6,924)
6,924 - - - - (6,924) -
20 = & 2,279 # - (2,279) 5
20 - - - 1,474 - (1,474) -
20 - - - 2,567 - (2,567) -
53,082 5,429 12,149 9,929 3,582 26,327 110,498
USD’000 USD’000 USD’000  USD’000  USD’000 USD’000 USD'000
119,891 14,101 25,636 15,294 5795 61,571 242,288
» = 5 - - 59,195 59,195
= e = = 10,213 - 10,213
= 2 = = (6,704) - (6,704)
& - = # 3,509 59,195 62,704
- - - - - (17,984) (17,984)
17,984 - - - - (17,984) -
20 = - 5,918 - - (5919) 2
20 = = & 3,829 - (3,829) 5
20 - - - 6,668 - (6,668) -
137,875 14,101 31,555 25,791 9,304 68,382 287,008

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of chan

for the year ended 31 December 2008

1 January 2008

Profit for the year
Fair value decrease

Net transfer to income statement

on sale of available-for-sale
investments

Impairment of available-for-sale
investment taken to income
statement

Total recognised income for 2008

Dividend paid for 2007
Increase in share capital
Increase in share premium
Increase in legal reserve
Transfer to legal reserve
Transferred to retained earnings

Transfer to subordinated loan
reserve

31 December 2008

1 January 2008

Profit for the year
Fair value decrease

Net transfer to income statement
on sale of available-for-sale
INvestments

!mpairment of available-for-sale
investment taken to income
statement

Total recognised income for 2008

Dividend paid for 2007
Increase in share capital
Increase in share premium
Increase in legal reserve
Transfer to legal reserve
Transferred to retained earnings

Transfer to subordinated loan
reserye

31 December 2008

Notes

19
20
20
20

20

18
19
20
20
20

20

ges in equity (continued)

Subordi- Investment
Share Share Legal gatﬁd revaluation Retained
capital premium  reserve onds i
p p and loon reserve earnings Total
reserve

RO'000 RO’000 RO’000 RO'000 RO'000 RO’000 RO'000
53,082 5,429 12,149 9,929 3,582 26,327 110,498
23,686 23,686

. : . - (7,108) - (7,108)

- - - - (1,099) - (1,099)

- - - - 4,864 - 4,864

s . : - (3343) 23,686 20,343

- - - - (13271) (13,2771)

17,692 - - ] - Z 17,692
- 53,077 - = = - 53,077

- - 94 s . . 94

: - 2,369 : - (2,369) -

. g - (7,362) - 7362 -

: . - 7,700 - (7,700) .
70,774 58,506 14,612 10,267 239 34,035 188,433
usp’000 USD’000 usp’‘oo0 usD’000 UsSD'000 USD’000 uUsD’o00
137,875 1401 31555 25791 9,304 68382 287,008
2 - . - - 61522 61522

s - . - (18,462) - (18,462)

. - - - (2,855) - (2,855)

- « - - 12,634 - 12,634

- . - - (8683) 61,522 52,839

- . - - - (34,470) (34,470)
45,953 = - = = - 45,953
- 137,863 = = = - 137,863

£ - 244 - s : 244

= - 6154 : - (6,154) -

- - - (19,123) - 19,123 -

- - - 20,000 - (20,000) .
183,828 151,964 37,953 26,668 621 88,403 489,437

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Cash flows statement
‘ for the year ended 31 December 2008

J 2008 2007

usD’000 usD’000 ‘ o
Cash flows from operating activities

| 206,800 167,881 Interest and commission receipts
| ‘ (67,060) (47,382) Interest payments
| ‘ (42,410) (41,995) Cash payments to suppliers and employees
M 97,330 78,504
"' Decrease in operating assets
| | (823,161) (400,197) Loans and advances to customers
“ (13,829) 5,400 Loans and advances to banks |
| (127,571) (185,333) Purchase of treasury bills and certificates of depaosits (net)
| (964,561) (580,130
‘ Increase in operating liabilities
| ;i | 771,672 460,675 Deposits from customers
I‘: (11,153) 59,268 Due to banks
‘ ‘: 760,519 519,943 o
.‘V' i (106,712) 18,317 Net cash (used in)/from operating activities
| ‘ I l (6,382) (4,457) Income tax paid .
! | .| (113,094) 13,860 Net cash (used in)/from operating activities
‘ Cash flows from investing activities
‘ | | ll 301 823 Investment income
| “:l | (33,868) (22,177) Purchase of investments
T | 20,294 25,922 Proceeds from sale of investments
"I il (4,774) (4,743) Purchase of property and equipment |
“ | 499 583 Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
I l (17,548) 407 Net cash (used in)/from investing activities
i Cash flow from financing activities
l | 184,060 - Proceeds from rights issue of share capital
il (19,122) 100,000 Subordinated bonds and loan
w | - (34,470) (17,984) Dividend paid
;‘ 130,468 82,016 Net cash flow from financing activities .
l (174) 96,283 Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
377,132 280,849 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
376,958 377,132 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
4 301,945 310,203 Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5)
| (1,299) (1,299) Capital deposit with Central Bank of On.nan
; 78,496 69,210 Loans and adva?ce?s to banks due within 90 days
11— (2,184) (982) Due to banks within 90 days
| : Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the cash
i 376,958 377,132 flow statement

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

2008 2007
RO'000 RO'000
79,618 64,634

(25,818) (18,242)
(16,328) (16,168)
37,472 30,224
(316,917)  (154,076)
(5,324) 2,079
(49,115) (71,353)
(371,356)  (223,350)
297,094 177,360
(4,294) 22,818
292,800 200,178
(41,084) 7,052
(2,457) (1,716)
(43,541) 5,336
116 317
(13,039) (8,538)

7,813 9,980

(1,838) (1,826)

192 224
(6,756) 157
70,863 -
(7,362) 38,500
(13,271) (6,924)
50,230 31,576
(67) 37,069
145,196 108,127
145,129 145,196
116,249 119,428
(500) (500)
30,221 26,646
(841) (378)
145,129 145,196

1.

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2008

Legal status and principal activities

BankDhofar SAOG (the Bank) is incorporated in the Sultanat
principally engaged in corporate, retail and investment banki
Muscat Securities Market (MSM)
(CBD), Muscat, Sultanate of Oman

e of Oman as a public joint stock company and is
ng activities. The Bank has a primary listing on the
and its principal place of business is the Head Office, Capital Business District

Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

Forthe yearended 31 December 2008, the Bank has ado
issued by the International Accounting Board (IASB)

Committee (IFRIC) of the 1ASB that are relevant to its 0
2008.

pted all of the new and revised standards andinterpretations
and the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
perations and effective for periods beginning on 1 January

The adoption of these standards and interpretations has not resulted in changes to the Bank’s accounting policies
and has not affected the amounts reported for the current or prior period.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, t

he following standards and interpretations were in
issue but not yet effective:

Effective for
annual periods
beginning or after
IFRIC 13: Customer Loyalty Programmes
IFRIC 16: Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
IFRIC15: Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
IFRS 1:  (Revised) First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS 2: (Revised) Share-based Payment
IFRS 8:  Operating Segments
IAS1: (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements
IAS 16:  (Revised) Property, Plant and Equipment
IA5 19:  (Revised) Employee Benefits
IAS 20:  (Revised) Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance
IAS 23:  (Revised) Borrowing Costs
IAS 29:  (Revised) Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
IAS 32:  (Revised) Financial Instruments - Presentation
IAS 36:  (Revised) Impairment of Assets
IAS 38:  (Revised) Intangible Assets
IAS 40:  (Revised) Investment Property
IAS 41: (Revised) Agriculture
IFRS 3:  (Revised) Business Combinations

1 July 2008
1 October 2008
1 January 2009
1 January 2009
1 January 2009
1 January 2009
1 January 2009
1 January 2009
1 January 2009
1 January 2009
1 January 2009
1 January 2009
1 January 2009
1 January 2009
1 January 2009
1 January 2009
1 January 2009

1 July 2009
IFRS 5: (Revised) Non-Current Assets held for Sale and Discontinued Operations 1 July 2009
IAS 27:  (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 1 July 2009
IAS 28:  (Revised) Investment in Associates 1 July 2009
IAS 31: (Revised) Interests in Joint Ventures 1 July 2009
IAS 39:  (Revised) Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement 1 July 2009

The management anticipates that the adoption of the standards

will have no material impact on the financial
statements of the Bank.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2008

LQ

3.

Principal accounting policies

3.1. Basis of preparation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting standards
(IFRS), the requirements of the Commercial Companies Law of 1974, as amended and disclosure requirements of
the Capital Market Authority.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for derivative financial instruments,
financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss and available for sale financial assets which are measured
at fair value in accordance with IFRS, and the requirements of the commercial companies law of 1974, as amended

and disclosure requirements of the Capital Market Authority.

These policies have been consistently applied in dealing with items that are considered material in relation to the
Bank's financial statements to all the years presented.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Bank's accounting
policies. The areas involving 3 higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

3.2. Foreign currency translations

3.2.1. Functional and presentation currency

items included in the Bank’s financial statements are measured using Rials Omani which is the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Bank operates, rounded off to the nearest thousand.

3.2.2. Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement. Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary items, other than those held at cost, such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets,

are included in the investment revaluation reserve in equity.

3.3. Financial instruments

3.3.1. Clossification

The Bank classifies its financial assets in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss; loans and receivables; held-to-maturity investments; and available-for-sale financial assets. Management
determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition.

3.3.1.1. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and those designated at fair value through
profit or loss at inception. A financial asset is held in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of short-
term profit taking o if so designated by management. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless

they are designated as hedges instruments.

Principal accounting policies (continued)

3.3. Financial instruments (continued)

3.3.1. Classification (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are designated at fair value through profit or loss when:

Doing so significantly reduces measurements inconsistencies that would arise if the related derivatives were
treated as held for trading and the underlying financial instruments were carried at amortised costs;

- Certain investments, that are managed and evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with documented

rlsk. managemer.lt or investments strategy and reported to key management personnel on that basis are
designated at fair value through profit or loss; and

. Fina?ﬂcial instruments, containing one or more embedded derivatives significantly modify the cash flows, are
designated at fair value through profit or loss. ‘

Gairlls and Igsses .arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives that are managed in conjunction with
designated financial assets or financial liabilities are included in the income statement.

3.3.1.2. Loans and receivables

.Loans anfj receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
inan actlvc_a market. They can be originated or acquired by the Bank with no intention of trading the receivable
and comprise loans and advances to banks and customers other than bonds purchased at original issuance.

3.3.1.3. Available-for-sale

{C\vailable-for-sale investments are those intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices.

3.3.1.4. Held-to-maturily investments

Investrr.u.ants with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates that the Bank has the positive
and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity investments. Held-to-maturity are recorded at

a’mlljj”ti)%d costs using the effective interest method less any impairment, with revenue recognised on an effective
yield basis.

3.3.2. Recognition and de-recognition

The Bank recognises financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale assets on the trade
da_te, the date it commits to purchase or sell the asset. From this date any gains and losses arising from changes in
fair value of the assets are recognised. Loans and receivables, deposits and subordinated liabilities are recognised
on the date they are originated.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
wherehthe Bank has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. A financial liability is derecognised
when it is extinguished.

3.3.3. Measurement

Financial assets are measured initially at cost plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss.

subsequent to initial recognition all financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and all available-for-sale
ass?ts are measured at fair value, except equity instrument that does not have a quoted market price in an
.aCtIVi.E market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured is stated at cost, including transaction costs, less
impairment losses.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2008

3:

Principal accounting policies (continued)

3.3. Financial instruments (continued)

3.3.3. Measurement (continued) . e
All non-trading financial liabilities and loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost less impairment

losses. Amortised cost is calculated on the effective interest rate method. Premiums and discounts, including
initial transaction costs, are included in the carrying amount of the related instrument and amortised based on the

effective interest rate of the instrument.

3.3.4. Fair value measurement principles

The fair values of quoted investments in active markets are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial
asset is not active (and for unlisted securities), the Bank establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These
include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis and other valuation techniques

commonly used by market participants.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash flows are based on management’s best
estimates and the discount rate is a market related rate at the balance sheet date for an instrument with similar
terms and conditions.

The fair value of derivatives that are not exchange-traded is estimated at the amount that the Bank would receive
or pay to terminate the contract at the balance sheet date taking into account current market conditions and the

current credit worthiness of the counter-parties.

3.3.5. Gains and losses on subsequent measurement

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
category are included in the income statement in the period in which they arise. Gains and losses arisirllg frolm
changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised directly in equity, until the fmanu?I
asset is de-recognised or impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

3.4. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three
months’ maturity from the date of acquisition, including: cash-on-hand, non-restricted cash deposited with the
central Bank of Oman, amounts due from other banks and eligible treasury bills and certificate of deposits.

3.5. Treasury bills and certificate of deposits

Treasury bills and certificates of deposit issued for a term longer than three months are classified as available-for-
sale or held-to-maturity at the date of acquisition.

3.6. Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or

realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Principal accounting policies (continued)

3.7. Impairment of financial assets

The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or mare events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of assets is impaired includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Bank about the following loss events:

(i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;
(i) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

(iii) the Bank granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

(iv) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
(v) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

(vi) observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets in the group, including:

- adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the group; or
- national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the group.

The Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If
the Bank determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement. If
a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Bank may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects
the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not
foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit
risk characteristics (i.e. on the basis of the Bank’s grading process that considers asset type, industry, geographical
location, collateral type, past-due status and other relevant factors). Those characteristics are relevant to the
estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtors” ability to pay all
amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2008

Principal accounting policies (continued)
3.7. Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the
basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the Bank and historical loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics similar to those in the Group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current
observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period on which the historical loss
experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets should reflect and be directionally consistent with
changes in related observable data from period to period (for example, changes in unemployment rates, property
prices, payment status, or other factors indicative of changes in the probability of losses in the group and their
magnitude). The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by
the Bank to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

When a loan is known to be uncollectible, all the necessary legal procedures have been completed, and the final
loss has been determined, the loan is written-off against the related provision for loan impairment. Such loans
are written-off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss has been
determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written-off are included in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating),
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in the income statement.

The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets, other than investments at fair value through profit and loss, is impaired. In the case of equity
investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered in determining whether the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss
- is removed from equity and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses recegnised in the income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the
fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for sale increases and the increase can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed

through the income statement.

3.8. Property and equipment

ltems of property and equipment are stated at cost-less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss.
Depreciation is calculated so as to write-off the cost of property and equipment, other than freehold land and
capital work-in-progress, by equal installments over their estimated economic useful lives from the date the asset

is brought into use, as follows :

Years
Buildings {'=25
Furniture and fixtures 3~
Motor vehicles 3i=5
4

Computer equipment

Principal accounting policies (continued)
3.8. Property and equipment (confinued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date

! . . - N . . ’
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The recaverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use.

Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment are determined by reference to their carrying amount and
are taken into account in determining operating profit. Repairs and renewals are charged to the income statement
when the expense is incurred. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the item of property and equipment. All other expenditure is recognised in the income
statement as an expense when incurred.

3.9. Intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

3.10. Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Bank has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of
a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
the amount has been reliably estimated. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. '

3.11. Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the year in which they are declared.

3.12. Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial
liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset
or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future
credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an impairment
loss, interest income is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss.
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to the financial statements (continueq)

Principal accounting policies (continued)

3.13. Fees and commission income

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been provided. Loan
commitment fees for loans that are likely to be drawn down are deferred (together with related direct costs) and
recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate on the loan. Loan syndication fees are recognised as
revenue when the syndication has been completed and the Bank retained no part of the loan package for itself
or retained a part at the same effective interest rate for the other participants. Commission and fees arising from
negotiating, or participating in the negotiation of, a transaction for a third party - such as the arrangement of
the acquisition of shares or other securities or the purchase or sale of businesses - are recognised on completion
of the underlying transaction. Portfolio and other management advisory and service fees are recognised based
on the applicable service contracts, usually on a time-apportionment basis. Asset management fees related to
investment funds are recognised rateably over the period the service is provided. The same principle is applied
for wealth management, financial planning and custody services that are continuously provided over an extended

period of time.

3.14. Taxation

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the
income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is
recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes (the tax base). The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the
balance sheet date. The principal temporary differences arise from depreciation of property and equipment and
provisions.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no lenger probable

that the related tax benefit will be realised.

3.15. Employee benefits

End-of-service benefits are accrued in accordance with the terms of employment of the Bank’s employees at the
balance sheet date, having regard to the requirements of the Oman Labour Law. Employee entitlements to annual
leave and leave passage are recognised when they accrue to employees and an accrual is made for the estimated
liability arising as a result of services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Contributions to a defined contribution retirement plan and occupational hazard insurance for Omani employees in
accordance with the Omani Social Insurances Law of 1991 and its subsequent amendments are recognised as an

expense in the income statement as incurred,

3.16. Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are stated at fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets, including
recent market transactions, and valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models and options pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair

value is negative,

Principal accounting policies (continued)
3.16. Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The best evidence of the fair valye of a derivative at initial recognition is the transaction price (i.e., the fair value
of the consideration given or received) unless the fair valye of that instrument is evidenced by comparison with

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as
a hedging instrument, and if 50, the nature of the item being hedged. Although the Bank enters into derivative
instruments for hedging purposes, certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting. Changes in
the fair value of any derivative instrument that does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately
in the income statement.

3.16.1 Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate derivatives
when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are
not measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

3.76.2 Hedge accounting

The Bank designates certain hedging instruments, which include derivatives, embedded derivatives and non-
derivatives in respect of foreign currency risk, as either fair value hedges, cash flow hedges, or hedges of net
investments in foreign operations. Hedges of foreign exchange risk on firm commitments are accounted for as cash
flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents the relationship between the hedging instrument
and the hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Bank documents whether
the hedging instrument that is used in 3 hedging relationship is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values
or cash flows of the hedged item.

3.16.3 Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in
profit or loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged item that are attributable
to the hedged risk. The change in the fair value of the hedging instrument and the change in the hedged item
attributable to the hedged risk are recognised in the line of the income statement relating to the hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Bank revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires
or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. The adjustment to the carrying
amount of the hedged item arising from the hedged risk is amortised to profit or loss from that date.

3.76.4 Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges
are deferred in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
and is included in the “other gains and losses” line of the income statement.

/5
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Principal accounting policies (continued)

3.16.4 Cash flow hedges (continued)

Amounts deferred in equity are recycled in profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item is recognised in
profit or loss, in the same line of the income statement as the recognised hedged item. However, when the
forecast transaction that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, the
gains and losses previously deferred in equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement

of the cost of the asset or liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Bank revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any cumulative gain or
loss deferred in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately
recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss
that was deferred in equity is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

3.17. Sale and repurchase agreements

Securities sold subject to repurchase agreements (repos) are reclassified in the financial statements as pledged
assets when the transferee has the right by contract or custom to sell or repledge the collateral; the counterparty
liability is included in amounts due to other banks, deposits from banks, other deposits or deposits due to
customers, as appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell (reverse repos) are recorded as loans
and advances to other banks or customers, as appropriate. The difference between sale and repurchase price is
treated as interest and accrued over the life of the agreements using the effective interest method. Securities lent
to counterparties are also retained in the financial statements.

securities borrowed are not recognised in the financial statements, unless these are sold to third parties, in which
case the purchase and sale are recorded with the gain or loss included in trading income.

3.18. Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, being their issue proceeds (fair value of consideration received)
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between
proceeds net of transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

3.19. Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Bank that is engaged either in providing products or services
(business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment (geographical
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments. The Bank currently
operates only in the Sultanate of Oman. The Bank’s primary farmat for reparting segmental information is business
segments, based upon management and internal reporting structure. The Bank’s main business segments are
corporate and retail banking.

3.20. Fiduciary assets

Assets held in trust or in a fiduciary capacity are not treated as assets of the Bank in the balance sheet,

3.21. Trade and settlement date accounting

All “reqular way” purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, i.e. that date the Banlk
commits to purchase the assets. Regular way purchase or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by requlation or convention in the market place.

Principal accounting policies (continued)

3.22. Direcfors’ remuneration

. , g : ,
Directors’ remuneration is calculated in accordance with the Commercial Companies Law of Sultanate of Oman

Critical Accounting Judgement and key sources of estimation uncertainty

(a)

(b)

©

Classification of investments

Management decides on acquisition of an investment whether it should be classified as held for trading
carried at fair value through profit or loss account, or available-for-sale or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale investments

Management follows the guidance set outin International Accounting Standard (1AS) 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement on classifying non-derivative financial assets as available-for-sale. This
classification requires management’s judgement based on its intentions to hold such investments.

Held-to-maturity investments

The Bank follows the guidance of IAS 39 on classifying non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This classification requires significant
judgements. In making this judgement, the Bank evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments
to maturity. If the Bank fails to keep these investments to maturity other than for the specific circumstances
- for example, selling an insignificant amount close to maturity — it will be required to classify the entire

class as available-for-sale. The investments would, therefore, be measured at fair value not amortised
costs.

Fair value estimation

Fair value is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date without any deduction for transaction
costs. If a quoted market price is not available, fair value is estimated based on discounted cash flow and
other valuation techniques.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash flows are based on management’s

best estimates and the discount rate is a market-related rate for a similar instrument at the balance sheet
date.

Impairment losses on loans and advances

The Bank reviews its loan portfolio to assess impairment at least on a quarterly basis. In determining
whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement, management makes judgements
as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a portfolio of loans and advances before the decrease can be identified with an
individual receivable in that portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating that there has
been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a group that correlate with defaults on
assets in the group. Management uses estimates based on historical lass experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolio when scheduling
its future cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of

future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss
experience.
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4.
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Critical Accounting Judgement and key sources of estimation uncertainty

(d)

(e)

()

Iimpairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Bank to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate present value. The carrying amount of goodwill at the balance sheet date in the financial

statements was RO 3,971 (2007 - RO 3,971).

Impairment of available-for-sale investment

The Bank determines that available-for-sale investments are impaired when there has been a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost. This determination of what is significant or prolonged
requires judgement. In making this judgement, management evaluates among other factors, the normal
volatility in share price. In addition, impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence of deterioration
in the financial health of the investee, industry and sector performance, changes in technology and

operational and financing cash flows.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged so as to write-off the cost of assets over their estimated useful lives. The calculation
of useful lives is based on management’s assessment of various factors such as the operating cycles, the
maintenance programs, and normal wear and tear using its best estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

2008 2007

RO'000 RO'000

Cash on hand 13,114 8,635
Balances with the Central Bank of Oman 103,135 45,793
Certificate of deposits with maturity of 90 days or less - 65,000
116,249 119,428

At 31 Decernber 2008, cash and cash equivalents included balances with the Central Bank of Oman approximately
RO 500,000 (2007 - RO 500,000) as minimum reserve requirements. These funds are not available for the Bank’s

daily business.

Outstanding certificate of deposits as of 31 December 2007 were issued by the Central Bank of Oman and carried

interest rate ranging from 1.90% to 1.98%.

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

2008 2007
RO'000 RO'000

Debts and other fixed income instruments held for trading

Government Development bonds

2,519 2,515

Loans and advances to banks

Placements with other banks
Current clearing accounts and bills discounted

At 371 December 2008, placement with one local bank individually represented 20% or more of the Bank’s

placements.

At 31 December 2007, no placement with any bank individually represented 20% or more of the Banlk's

placements.

Loans and advances to customers

Overdrafts

Loans

Loans against trust receipts
Bills discounted

Advance against credit cards
Others

Gross loans and advances
Less: Impairment allowance

Net loans and advances

The movements in the impairment allowance is analysed below:

(a)  Allowance for loan impairment
1 January
Allowance made during the year
Released to the income statement during the year
Written-off during the year

31 December

(b)  Reserved interest
1 January
Reserved during the year
Released to the income statement during the year
Written-off during the year

31 December

Total impairment allowance

2008
RO’000

30,299

7,287

37,586

2007
RO'000

22,859

6,328

29,187

2008 2007
RO'000 RO'000
102,577 73,052
873,808 621,846
67,791 38,203
3,466 3,224
7,945 4,717
13,180 8,998
1,068,767 750,040
(50,326) (45,397)
1,018,441 704,643
28,824 29,170
5,470 3,263
(2,350) (1,515)
(260) (2,094)
31,684 28,824
16,573 16,727
3,544 3,438
(1,102) (824)
(373) (2,768)

_ 18,642 16,573
50,326 45,397
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Loans and advances to customers (continued)

As a matter of policy, the Bank considers waiver/write-off or settlement only in such cases where the Bank is
satisfied that the recovery of the full outstanding liabilities from the borrower is not possible in the normal course
of business or out of the securities realisation or through enforcement of the guarantee (wherever available) and
that legal action will not yield higher recoveries after considering the time and costs involved.

Proposals for waivers/write-off are not formula driven and are decided on case-by-case basis after weighing all
pros and cons. The rationale is invariably documented. In all cases, the Bank aims to recover maximum value
through enforcement of collaterals /guarantees of guarantors, etc.

Interest is reserved by the Bank against loans and advances which are impaired, to comply with the rules,
regulations and guidelines issued by the Central Bank of Oman.

Under the Central Bank of Oman’s guidelines for provision against classified loans and advances, at 31 December
2008, out of the total provisions of R0 50,326,142 (2007 - RO 45,397,195) a collective provision made on a general
portfolio basis amounting to RO 14,989,548 (2007 - RO 10,208,545).

At 31 December 2008, impaired loans and advances on which interest has been reserved amount to RO 36,379,850
(2007 - RO 34,893,000) and loans and advances on which interest is not being accrued amount to RO 1,871,358

(2007 - RO 1,729,189).

Loan and advances are summarised as follows

2008 2007
Loans and Loans and Loans and Loans and
advances to advances advances to advances to
customers to banks customers banks
RO’000 R0O'000 RO'000 RO'000
Neither past due nor impaired 1,018,550 37,586 700,585 29,187
Past due but not impaired 12,267 - 13,046 -
Impaired 37,950 - 36,409 -
Gross loans and advances 1,068,767 37,586 750,040 29,187
Less: Impairment allowance (50,326) - (45,397) -
Total 1,018,441 37,586 704,643 29,187

Loans and advances neither past due nor impaired

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that were neither past due nor impaired can be assessed
by reference to the internal rating system adopted by the Bank.

Loans and advances past due but not impaired

2008 2007

RO'000 RO'000

Past due up to 30 days 8,458 8,871
Past due 30 - 60 days 2,931 974
Past due 60 - 89 days 878 3,201
Totals 12,267 13,046

8.

Loans and advances to customers (continued)

Impaired

2008 2007
RO’000 RO'000

Substandard

2,058
Doubtful '366 573
345
Loss

35,526 35,491
Total g
37,950 36,409

Fair value of collaterals

Upan initial recognition of loans and advances, the fair value of collateral is based on valuation techniques

commonl\.( used. for the corresponding assets. [n subsequent periods, the fair value is updated by reference to
market price or indexes of similar assets.

Loans and advances renegotiated

modification and deferral of payments. Restructuring policies and practices are based on indicators or criteria

2008 (2007: RO 1,664,000).

Available-for-sale investments

2008 2007
o RO'000 RO'000
Equity instruments
- Quoted
Q 10,546 7,552
- Unquoted 3,241 7,108
13,787 14,660
Fair value
Cost 2008 2007
RO'000 RO’'000 RO'000
Quoted on the Muscat Securities Market (by sector)
Banking and investments 565 558 1,670
S ) s
| ec:wcte.s r 7,436 7,308 4,640
n
ustria 2,823 2,680 1,242
10,824 10,546 7,552
Unquoted
Unquoted Omani company 1,857 2,375 3,937
! I
Unquoted foreign equities 867 ’866 3,171
2,724 3,241 7,108
13,548 13,787 14,660

ST
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9.

10.

11.

Available-for-sale investments (continued)

At 31 December 2008, the investments are carried at their fair value. The market value in certain cases is higher
than the carrying amount. However, the Board of Directors believe that due to the non-liquidity of certain shares,
the market value of the quoted securities is not representative of the fair value and hence appropriate adjustments
have been made to the market value to reflect the fair value.

Held-to-maturity investments

2008 2007

RO'000 RO'000

Treasury bills above 90 days 20,468 36,353
Certificates of deposits above 90 days 100,000 35,000
120,468 71,353

Treasury bills are issued by the commercial banks outside Sultanate of Oman for a term of 3 to 6 months and carry
interest rates ranging from 2.61% to 4.34% (2007 - 3.95% to 4.45%).

Qutstanding certificate of deposits are issued by the Central Bank of Oman and carry interest rates ranging from
1.25% to 2.2% (2007 - 2.45% to 3.60%).

Intangible asset

2008 2007
RO'000 RO'000
Goodwill 3,971 3,971

The goodwill had resulted from the acquisition of branches of the commercial Bank of Oman in the year 2001 and
merger with Majan International Bank in the year 2003.

12,

13.

14.

Property and equipment

Cost

1 January 2007
Additions
Disposals

1 January 2008
Additions

Disposals

31 December 2008

Depreciation

1 January 2007
Charge for the year
Disposals

1 January 2008
Charge for the year
Disposals

31 December 2008

Carrying amount
31 December 2008

31 December 2007

Other assets

Interest receivable
Prepaid expenses
Dividends receivable

Positive fair value of derivatives (note 33)

Other receivables

Due to banks

Syndicated borrowings

Other borrowings
payable on demand

Furniture Capital

Freehold and Motor Computer  work-in-
land Buildings  fixtures  vehicles Equipment  progress Total
RO'000 RO'000 RO'000 RO’000 RO'000 RO’000 RO'000
140 1,573 4,538 760 5,809 73 12,893
# - 871 265 588 102 1,826
& - (142) (183) (32) (110) (467)
140 1,573 5,267 842 6,365 65 14,252
" B 978 175 750 (65) 1,838
- - (251) (67) (101) - (419)
140 1,573 5,994 950 7,014 = 15,671
% 587 3,188 453 4,513 = 8,741
Z 60 534 173 614 - 1,381
- - (118) (134) (31) - (283)
= 647 3,604 492 5,096 - 9,839
= 59 676 192 684 . 1,611
- - (214) (67) (95) - (376)
= 706 4,066 617 5,685 " 11,074
140 867 1,928 333 1,329 - 4,597
140 926 1,663 350 1,269 65 4,413
2008 2007
RO’'000 RO'000
2,207 2,154
893 583
118 527
- 197
2,984 1,496
6,202 4,957
2008 2007
RO'000 RO'000
67,375 67,375
19,250 14,437
3,038 11,682
89,663 93,494
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14.

15.

16.

Due to banks (continued)

During previous years, the Bank entered into two mid-term syndicated loan agreements with foreign banks for
USD 175,000,000 with three years maturity. The rates of interest are linked to three-maonth LIBOR subject to
competitive margin.

During the current year, the Bank entered into a loan agreement for USD 20,000,000 with a foreign bank having
maturity of three years and carries a interest rate linked to three months LIBOR subject to competitive margin.

At 31 December 2007 and 2008, no borrowing from a bank individually represented 20% or more of the Bank’s
borrowings. The Bank has not had any defaults of principal, interest or other breaches during the year on its
borrowed funds (2007 - Nil).

Deposits from customers

2008 2007

RO’000 RO'000

Current accounts 197,496 178,137
Savings accounts 163,853 142,907
Time deposits 606,493 351,393
Margin accounts 3,754 2,065
971,596 674,502

Current accounts and time deposits include deposits from the Government of the Sultanate of Oman and its
entities amounting to RO 307,000,000 (2007 - RO 125,797,000).

Other liabilities

2008 2007

RO’000 RO’000

Interest payable 6,761 8,807
Creditors and accruals 24,937 19,087
Income tax provision 3,399 2,523
Deferred tax liability (note 27) 138 80
Negative fair value of derivatives (note 33) 6 =
Staff terminal benefits 387 274
35,628 30,771

Employee terminal benefits

The Bank’s net liability and the movement in the employee terminal benefits during the year are as follows:

2008 2007

RO’000 RO'000

1 January 274 270
Expense recognised in the income statement 140 88
Cash paid to employees (27) (84)
387 274

17.

18.

Subordinated bonds and loan

2008 2007

RO'000 RO’000

Subordinated bonds (@) - 7,362
Subordinated loan (b) 38,500 38,500
38,500 45,862

(3) subordinated bonds

Pursuant to a ‘merger agreement’ between the Bank and Majan International Bank SAQC (MIB) dated 28
December 2002, on 31 March 2003 the Bank issued 7,361,767 subordinated bonds of RO 1 each with a
tenure of 5 years and 1 day to the former shareholders of MIB. These bonds carried a coupon rate of 7% per

annum payable annually and were listed at Muscat Security Market. The bonds were matured and repaid in
April 2008.

(b) Subordinated loan

In August 2007, the Bank availed an unsecured subordinated loan of USD 100 million with a tenor of 5 years
and one month. The rate of interest s linked to three month LIBOR plus margin, payable quarterly, while
principal is payable in lumpsum at maturity.

Share capital

The authorised share capital consists of 1,000,000,000 shares of RO 0.100 each (2007 - 1,000,000,000 shares of
RO 0.100 each).

On 14 October 2008 the Shareholders of the Bank in their Extraordinary General Meeting approved the increase of
the share capital of the Bank by issuing a rights issue from RO 53,081,700 to RO 70,773,831. As a result the share
capital of the Bank increased to 707,738,306 shares of RO 0.100 each,

At 31 December 2008, the issued and paid-up share capital comprise 707,738,306 shares of RO 0.100 each,
(2007 - 530,817,000 shares of RQ 0.100 each).

Shareholders

The following shareholders of the Bani own 10% or more of the Bank’s share capital:

2008 2007

No of shares % No of shares %
Dhofar International Development
and Investment Company SAOG 218,665,824 31 159,245,096 30
Civil Service Employees’ Pension Fund 70,773,815 10 53,081,689 10
Total 289,439,639 41 212,326,785 40
Others 418,298,667 59 318,490,215 60

707,738,306 100 530,817,000 100

85
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19.

20.

Share premium

During the current year, the Bank has issued share of 176,921,306 by way of rights issue at a premium of
RO 0.300 representing an increase in share premium by RO 53,076,392. Share premium account is not available

for distribution.

Reserves
(a) Legal reserve 2008 2007
RO'000 RO'000
1 January 12,149 9,870
Increase due to excess of receipts against rights issue expenses 94 =
Appropriation for the year 2,369 2,279
31 December 14,612 12,149

(b)

In accordance with Article 78 of the Commercial Companies Law of 1974, the excess of the receipt of the
rights issue expenses transferred to legal reserve.

In accordance with Article 106 of the Commercial Companies Law of 1974, annual appropriations of 10% of
profit are made to the legal reserve until the accumulated balance of the reserve is equal to one-third of the
Bank’s paid up share capital. This reserve is not available for distribution.

subordinated bonds and loan reserves

2008 2007

RO'000 RO'000

1 January 9,929 5,888
Appropriation for the year

Subordinated bonds reserve (7,362) 1,474

Subordinated loan reserve 7,700 2,567

31 December 10,267 9,929

Subordinated bonds reserve

Consistent with Bank for International Settlement (BIS) Guidelines on capital adequacy, the Bank transfers
an amount equivalent to 20% of the value of the subordinated bonds each year to the subordinated bond
reserve until the bonds mature. The bonds matured in April 2008. The amount of the reserve had been
transferred to retained earnings through statement of changes in equity upon settlement of the subordinated
bonds.

Subordinated loan reserve

Consistent with Bank for International Settlement (BIS) Guidelines on capital adequacy, the Bank transfers
an amount equivalent to 20% of the value of the subordinated loan each year to the subordinated loan
reserve until the maturity of the loan. Since the loan was obtained at the end of August 2007, the Bank
transferred 6.67% of the value of the subordinated loan being the period the loan was outstanding in 2007
and 20% in 2008. The amount of the reserve will be transferred to retained earnings through statement of
changes in equity upon settlement of the subordinated loan.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Reserves (continued)

(¢) Investment revaluation reserve

The movements in the investments revaluation reserve is analysed below:

1 January
(Decrease)/increase in fair value
Impairment of available-for-sale investment taken to income statement

Net transfer to income statement on sale of available-for-sale investment

Retained earnings

2008 2007
RO’000 RO'000
3,582 2,231
(7,108) 3,932
4,864 -
(1,099) (2,581)
239 3,582

Retained earnings represent the undistributed profits generated by the Bank since incorporation.

Net assets per share

Net assets per share is calculated by dividing the net assets at the year-end by the number of shares outstanding

at 31 December as follows :

Net assets (RO)

Number of shares outstanding at 31 December (Nos.)

Net assets per share (RO)

Net interest income

Loans and advances to customers
Debt investments

Money market placements
Others

Total interest income

Deposits from customers
Money market deposits

Total interest expense

Net interest income

Included in interest income from debt investments an amount of RO 2,076,278 (2007: RO 1,913,

interest income from held-to-maturity investments.

2008 2007
188,433,000 110,498,000
707,738,306 530,817,000

0.266 0.208

2008 2007
RO’000 RO'000
60,627 46,772

2,358 3,472
579 1,209
107 157
63,671 51,610
(18,162) (15,962)
(5,610) (5,292)
(23,772) (21,254)
39,899 30,356
962) being

&/
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24.  Other income 25.  staff and administrative costs (continued)
S0 2007 (c) Oman Social Insurance Scheme (the Scheme)
RO'000 RO'000
The Bank contributes to the Scheme for all Omani employees. The Scheme, which is a defined contributions
Foreign exchange 1,512 1,128 retirement plan, is administered by the Government of Oman. The Bank and Omani employees are required
Investment income (a) 3,789 4,662 to make monthly contributions to the Scheme based on fixed percentages of basic salaries.
Miscellaneous income 6,448 4,942
(d) Non-Omani employee terminal benefits
11,749 10,732 . ) . ; . : .
The provision for end-of-service benefits for non-Omani employees is made in accordance with the
: requirements of the Omani Labour Law. Employees are entitled to benefits based on length of service and
(a) Investment income . . . ; i ik
final remuneration. Accrued staff terminal benefits are payable on termination of employment.
Dividend income-available-for-sale investments 1,565 406
Gain of disposal of available-for-sale investments 2,108 3,939 26. Impairment of financial assets
Int[erei;incorfr]le orf].ta‘ina{lcial instrurnents at fair 2008 2007
value through profit or loss
aep 116 3 RO’000 R0'000
3,789 4,662
Impairment of available-for-sale investments 4,864 -
25.  Staff and administrative costs Provision for loan impairment 5,470 3,263
(a) Staff costs Bad debts written-off 2 24
2008 2007 10,336 3,287
RO ‘000 RO'600 Recoveries from provision for loan impairment (2,350) (1,515)
i Net impairment change of financial assets 7,986 1,772
Salaries and allowances 11,030 7.422
Other personnel costs 927 625
27.  Income tax
Scheme costs - Note (c) 437 353
Non-Omani employees terminal benefit - Note (d) 140 88 (a) Income tax expense:
12,534 8,488 2008 2007
(b) Administrative costs RO'000 RO'000
Advertising and promotion 2,116 2,092
ace ) 4 : P 1'532 1’175 Current year tax charge
ccupancy costs s S
p. ! Current year 3,333 2,517
Donation - 1,004 e B
i Under provision of tax in prior year - 96
Data processing 267 779
Fees and subscriptions 533 446 3,333 2,613
Correspondent charges 45 52 Deferred tax - Current year 58 (48)
Communication costs 315 298 g1 5 565
Printing and stationery 281 219 2 -
Professional charges 358 373
Insurance 65 88
Postage and courier 69 61
Vehicle expenses 148 104
Travelling expenses 84 62
Training costs 139 158
Others 308 186
6,960 7,095
19,494 15,583

At31 December 2008, the Bank had 840 employees (2007 - 720).

88 39
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27.

28.

Income tax (continued)

The Bank is liable to income tax for the year 2008 in accordance with the income tax laws of the Sultanate
of Oman at the rate of 12% on taxable profits in excess of RO 30,000. The following is a reconciliation of
income taxes calculated at the applicable tax rate with the income tax expense:

2008 2007

Current year ;
RO'000 RO000
; : 27,077 25,355

Accounting profit for the year

Tax expense as provided at the rate above mentioned 3,246 3,039
Tax exempt revenue (441) (468)
Prior year tax = 96
Non-deductible expenses 586 (105)
Others - 3
Tax expense 3,391 2,565

(b) Temporary timing differences which give rise to deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

2008 2007

RO'000 RO'000

Depreciation of property and equipment 101 82
Intangible assets (239) (162)
(138) (80)

(c) Status of the tax assessments

The Bank's tax assessments for the years 2003 to 2008 have not yet been finalised with the Department
of Taxation Affairs at the Ministry of Finance. The Board of Directors believe that additional taxes, if any, in
respect of open tax assessments would not be material to the Bank's results and financial position.

Earnings per share (basic and diluted)

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on profit for the year attributable to ordinary
shareholders as follows:

2008 2007
Profit for the year (RO) 23,686,000 22,790,000
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year 534,210,011 530,817,000
Earnings per share basic and diluted 0.044 0.043

Earnings per share (basic and diluted) has been derived by dividing the profit for the year attributable to the
shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding. As there are no dilutive potential shares,
the diluted earnings per share is identical to the basic earnings per share.

29.

Related parties transactions

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank conducts transactions with certain of its Directors, shareholders and
companies over which they are able to exert significant influence. The aggregate amounts of balances with such
related parties are as follows:

2008 2007
RO’000 RO'000
Loans and advances
Directors and shareholders holding less than 10% interest in the Bank 29,096 21,938
Directors and shareholders holding 10% or more interest in the Bank 12,608 13,186
41,704 35124
Deposits and other accounts
Directors and sharehelders holding less than 10% interest in the Bank 62,063 38,586
Directors and shareholders holding 10% or more interest in the Bank 89,516 28,940
151,579 67,526
2008 2007
RO'000 RO'000
Contingent liabilities and commitments
Directors and shareholders holding less than 10% interest in the Bank 35 1,308
Directors and shareholders holding 10% or more interest in the Bank - 33
35 1.391
Remuneration paid to Directors
Chairman
- remuneration proposed 18 11
- sitting fees paid 10 10
Other Directors
- remuneration proposed 110 127
- sitting fees paid 62 52
200 200
Other transactions
Rental payment to a related party 180 59
Other transactions 27 22
Key management compensation
Salaries and other benefits 612 373
Other related costs - performance bonus 305 185
End-of-service settlement 432 5
1,349 558

9
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30.  Fiduciary assets 32.  Contingent liabilities and commitments (continued)

2008 2007 (b) Legal cases

v !
RO000 RO'GOD During the year 2008, a primary court decided a compensation of RO 5,000,000 to be paid by the Bank to

two plaintiffs against their alleged commercial damages. The plaintiffs have appealed requesting increase I
in the judgement amount. The Bank has also appealed the primary judgment and the Appeal Court has
appointed an expert to report on technical issues in the dispute. |

Funds under management 604 86

31.  Single borrower and senior members

) The Bank’s lawyers believe that grounds of the Bank’s appeal are strong and sustainable and anticipated Ll
(a) single borrower that the Appeal Court would be able to overrule the primary judgement and dismiss the case, taking into
consideration that a similar claim from the same plaintiffs against a local bank had been dismissed by a

2008 2007 ; . N y 3 i
, , primary court. At this stage of the proceedings, the Bank’s lawyers and management believe that it is very ‘
RO’000 RO'000 difficult to predict the outcome of this litigation.
Total exposure:
- Also, a plaintiff has filed a lawsuit against the Bank claiming a compensation of RO 1,037,550 for commercial i
Direct 12,351 7,883 ; ; , ; '
] _ and moral damages. The Bank’s lawyers and management believe that the claim has no ground and will be
Indirect (off-balance sheet items) - » dismissed by the court.
[
12,351 7,883 ! \
Number of members 1 2 ' {c) Capital and investment commitments |
| 2008 2007 I
Il I
(b) Senior member RO,000 RO'000 il
I
Total exposure: Contractual commitments for property and equipment 1,117 860 I
Direct 42,725 35,775 ‘ :
. - I ‘
Indirect 35 1,391 33.  Derivative financial instruments |
42,760 37,166 The Bank uses the following derivative instruments for both hedging and non-hedging purposes: i
i
Number of members 22 23 Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase foreign and domestic currency, including undelivered spot f 3
. transactions. Currency swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result in an \
3 i hiabiliit 3 . economic exchange of currencies. No exchange of principal takes place, except for certain currency swaps. The :;
' ontiftgent iabilities and commitments | Bank’s credit risk represents the potential cost to replace the swap contracts if counterparties fail to perform their I
(a) Credit-related contingent items obligation. This risk is monitored on an ongoing basis with reference to the current fair value, a proportion of the ‘
| notional amount of the contracts and the liquidity of the market. To control the level of credit risk taken, the Bank '

Letters of credit, guarantees and other commitments for which there are corresponding customer .‘ assesses counterparties using the same techniques as for its lending activities

liabilities: ‘
2008 2007 The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments provide a basis for comparison with instruments
RO’000 RO'000 recognised on the balance sheet but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the
current fair value of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Bank’s exposure to credit or price risks. The Il
Letters of credit 76,407 47,222 derivative instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market I
Acceptances 18,116 14,748 ' interest rates or foreign exchange rates relative to their terms. The aggregate contractual or notional amount of m
Guarantees and performance bonds 69,122 51,955 derivative financial ins'truments on hz?ndi the_ exte.nt to which ins-tfu.rr)e.‘nts are favo_ura.ble or unfavourable, and ’M
Advance payment guarantees 42,211 28,476 t‘hus the aggregate fair va[qe.s of derlvatl\{e financ.|ai assets a.nd liabilities sh_owrl W.lfhln other assets and other il
liabilities, can fluctuate significantly from time to time. The fair values of derivative instruments held are set out |
Payment guarantees 29,398 23,118 R I
Others 4,871 2,041 '
2 ; g
40,125 1e7, 564 At 31 December 2008 Fair value increase/decrease
: ; . Contract/notional
At 31 December 2008, letters of credit, quarantees and other commitments amounting to RO 2,649,000 /amount Asseats Liabilities
(2007 - RO 1,180,000) are counter-guaranteed by other banks. RO’000 RO’000 RO’000
Foreign exchange derivatives
Currency forwards - purchase contracts 37,814 - 60
Currency forwards - sales contracts 37,843 54 -

97




Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2008

33.

34.

Derivative financial instruments (continued)

At 31 December 2007 Fair value increase

Contract/notional
amount Assets Liabilities
. . RO'000 RO'000 RO'000
Foreign exchange derivatives
Currency forwards - purchase contracts 62,747 173 -
Currency forwards - sales contracts 62,483 24

The following table indicates the periods in which the cash flows associated with derivatives that are expected to
impact profit or loss,

Assets Liabilities
2008 2007 2008 2007
RO'000 RO'000 RO'000 RO’000
Expected cash flow less than 6 months - 197 6 -

Fair value information

Based on the valuation methodology outlined below, the fair values of all on and off-balance sheet financial
instruments at 31 December 2008 are considered by the Directors not to be materially different to their book
values,

Estimation of fair values

The following summarises the major methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of assets and
liabilities:

Loans and advances

Fair value is calculated based on discounted expected future principal and interest cash flows. Loan repayments are
assumed to occur at contractual repayment dates, where applicable. For loans that do not have fixed repayment
dates or that are subject to prepayment risk, repayments are estimated based on experience in previous periods
when interest rates were at levels similar to current levels, adjusted for any differences in interest rate outlook.
Expected future cash flows are estimated considering credit risk and any indication of impairment. Expected future
cash flows for homogeneous categories of loans are estimated on a portfolio basis and discounted at current rates
offered for similar loans to new borrowers with similar credit profiles. The estimated fair values of loans reflect
changes in credit status since the loans were made and changes in interest rates in the case of fixed rate loans.

investments

Fair value is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date without any deduction for transaction costs,
If a quoted market price is not available, fair value is estimated based on discounted cash flow and other valuation
techniques.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash flows are based on management’s best
estimates and the discount rate is a market-related rate for 3 similar instrument at the balance sheet date.

Current account balances due to and due from banks

The carrying amount of current account balances due to and from banks was considered to be a reasonable
estimate of fair value due to their short-term nature.

34.

35.

Fair value information (continued)
Bank and customer deposits

For demand deposits and deposits with no defined maturities, fair value is taken to be the amaunt payable on
demand at the balance sheet date. The estimated fair value of fixed-maturity deposits, including certificates of
deposit, is based on discounted cash flows using rates currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities.
The value of long-term relationships with depositors is not taken into account in estimating fair values.

Other on-balance sheet financial instruments

The fair values of all on-balance sheet financial instruments are considered to approximate their book values.

off-balance sheet financial instruments

No fair value adjustment is made with respect to credit-related off-balance sheet financial instruments, which
include commitments to extend credit, standby letters of credit and guarantees, as the related future income
streams materially reflect contractual fees and commissions actually charged at the balance sheet date for
agreements of similar credit standing and maturity.

Foreign exchange contracts are valued based on market prices. The market value adjustments in respect of foreign
exchange contracts are included in other assets and other liabilities.

Fair value versus carrying amounts

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities approximates their carrying value as stated in the balance
sheet,

Risk Management

The important types of financial risks to which the Bank is exposed are credit risk, liquidity and market risk.
The risk management division of the Bank is an independent and dedicated unit reporting directly to the Risk
Committee (RC) of the Board. The division’s primary responsibility is to assess, monitor and recommend strategies
for control of credit, market and operational risk. The absence of any direct or indirect reporting lines and
permanent membership in all the Bank’s committees are among the factors which reflect the independence of
the Risk Management Divisions working and the key role it plays within the Bank.

The risk management framework is pivoted on a host of committees involving the Executive Management
and Board of Directors for approval and reporting purposes. The Board has the overall authority for approval of
strategies and policies, which it exercises through it's various sub-committees, The Risk Committee of the Board
is responsible for reviewing and recommending to the full Board for approval all risk policies and procedures. Risk
Committee also reviews the risk profile of the Bank as presented to it by the RMD and appraises the full Board in
its periodic meetings.

(i) Credit risk

The most important risk to which the Bank is exposed to is credit risk. To manage the level of credit risk,
the Bank deals with counter-parties of good credit standing and when appropriate, obtain collateral.

Executive Committee of the Board is the final credit approving authority of the Bank which is mainly
responsible for approving all credit proposals beyond the authority level of the management and also for
reviewing and approving credit policies. This committee is also the final authority for approving investments
beyond the authority of the management. The Management Credit Committee (MCC) is the management
decision-making body which is empowered to consider all credit-related issues upto certain limits.
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‘L k g 35. Risk Management (continued) 35.  Risk Management (continued)
| (i) Credit risk (continued) (i) Credit risk (continued)
r i
| . ; .
: ; Credit risk is managed by the Risk Management Division through a system of independent risk assessment in (c) Economic sector concentrations
| | credit proposals beyond a threshold limit of RO 100,000 before they are considered by the appropriate approving P Liabilities
| :‘ authorities. The Bank has in place a risk grading system for analysing the risk associated with credit. This facilitates | . ]
| 1 th i thorities in making their credit decision. In addition RMD assists/revi rading of obligors ' Grasen  Hepmsl10M Comsingent
| . edapprovmg Iau orities in | (:_]][ ! di ec;fsrlon. nda t ds:!s 5 rev;ev:s g T tg ) gors, and advances S RETE liabilities
I is of t it i i i ion limits. Maximum
| | conducts regular macro analysi fu e credit portfolio, an ’monl_ ors credi colncen ration limits i RO'000 655550 oo
| | counterparty/group exposures are limited to 15% of the Bank’s capital base as stipulated by CBO and where a i Becemiber 008
: higher limit is required for projects of national importance prior CBO approval is obtained. Individual country
j j limits L.!Siﬂg. Mooqy’s, S & P and Fitclh ratings have also bgeq set up to ensure portfolio d]versif_icatior‘n in .terrn.s of | Personal 420,765 318,569 503
. ‘ ?OVEFEI%H risk ra.tll:g;and geog;a]Tblca[ e:](posur:e. IThefse I|Ejr'1|tjs arg appl))rolved by the Board. Retail lending is strictly i International trade 81,824 17,940 40,402
I in accordance with the CBO guidelines. The analysis of credit is given below: . thratilialian 60,809 21,892 89,058
(a) Geographical concentrations : Manufacturing 70,833 26,697 44,093
[ .. I Wholesale and retail trade 20,209 5,044 2,949
( M o . Llablhtlc_es || Communication and utilities 45,329 11,957 10,236
|\ Loans and - MEpasts] lhapnens i‘ Finandial services 75,409 21,007 3,989
Il | -“ Advances loans and Investment from from Contingent |
| , to banks advances Securities  customers banks liabilities Government 71,744 307,036 343
i I :
‘I 31 December 2008 Others 151,700 162,445 25,236
y Sultanate of Oman 9,625 1,049,143 115,439 966,882 2,197 135,864 1,068,767 971,596 240,125
] Other GCC countries 10,736 17,919 20,468 4,714 10,337 19,958 ‘
Europe and North America 17,077 1,705 570 = 75,204 26,182 |
| Africa and Asia 148 - 297 - 1,925 58,121 ; Assets Liabilities
‘ i 37,586 1,068,767 136,774 971,596 89,663 240,125 ‘ Gross loans  Deposits from Contingent
31 December 2007 ‘ and advances customners liabilities
Sultanate of Oman - 732,599 49,004 669,765 22,854 88,735 RO'000 RO'000 RO'000
il Other GCC countries 12,959 17,441 30,589 4,737 1,317 38,190
‘ i 31 December 2007
\ Europe and North America 14,622 - 8,180 - 67,687 11,478
(|1 Africa and Asia 1,606 s 755 - 1,636 29,157 Personal 275,822 267,551 1,128
I 29,187 750,040 88,528 674,502 93,494 167,560 - International trade 5802 24107 35,290
i Construction 46,594 12,891 58,257
| | (b) Customer concentrations Manufacturing 52,319 12,577 22,251
7 - Wholesale and retail trade 15,565 2,983 2,793
| i Assets Liabilities g o
| - 7 Communication and utilities 35,217 1,323 5,909
I Loans and Gross Deposits  Deposits ) ) i
I ‘ Advances loans and Investment from from Contingent Financial services 39,461 15,561 455
I to banks advances Securities customers banks liabilities Government 35,977 125,797 8
;‘ RO’000 RO'000 RO’000 RO'000 RO'000 RO’000 Other services 46,537 58,058 13,417
‘ ; 31 December 2008 Others 98,849 153,654 27,352
i 1 Personal ' 420,765 = 318,569 - 503 750,040 674,502 167,560
_ Corporate 37,586 576,258 34,255 345,991 89,663 239,279
‘ : Government - 71,744 102,519 307,036 - 343 ‘,
| I
‘ | 37,586 1,068,767 136,774 971,596 89,663 240,125 I
1 31 December 2007 I
Personal = 275,822 = 267,551 " 1,128 :
‘ Corporate 29,187 438,241 51,013 281,154 93,494 166,424 (i
(i Government = 35,977 37,515 125,797 - 8 Il

| 96 29,187 750,040 88,528 674,502 93,494 167,560 97
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35.

Risk Management (continued)

U
(d)

(e)

credit risk (continued)

Gross credit exposure:

Overdrafts

Loans

Loans against trust receipts
Bills discounted

Advance against credit cards
oOthers

Total

Geographical distribution of exposures:

31 December 2008
Overdrafts

Loans

Loans against trust receipts
Bills discounted

Advance against credit cards
Others

31 December 2007
Overdrafts

Loans

Loans against trust receipts
Bills discounted

Advance against credit cards
Others

Total Gross Exposure

Monthly Average Gross Exposure

2008 2007 2008 2007
RO’000 RO'000 RO’000 RO'000
102,577 73,052 88,351 68,968
873,808 621,846 763,481 549,138
67,791 38,203 57,226 36,583
3,466 3,224 3,453 2,068
7,945 4,717 6,244 4,268
13,180 8,998 11,688 10,029
1,068,767 750,040 930,443 671,054
Other

sultanate of Oman Countries Total

RO000 RO'000 RO'000

102,577 - 102,577

854,720 19,088 873,808

67,255 536 67,791

3,466 - 3,466

7,945 - 7,945

13,180 - 13,180

1,049,143 19,624 1,068,767

73,052 - 73,052

604,471 17,375 621,846

38,137 66 38,203

3,224 = 3,224

4,717 - 4,717

8,998 8,998

732,599 17,441 750,040

35.

Risk Management (continued)

(i) Credit risk (continued)

(f)  Industry-type distribution of exposures by major types of credit exposures:

31 December 2008

Import trade

Export trade
Wholesale/retail trade
Mining and quarrying
Construction
Manufacturing
Electricity, gas and water
Transport and communication
Financial institutions
Services

Personal loans

Agriculture and allied activities

Government
Non-resident lending
Others

31 December 2007

Import trade

Export trade

Wholesale /retail trade
Mining and quarrying
Construction

Manufacturing

Electricity, gas and water
Transport and communication
Financial institutions

Services

Personal loans

Agriculture and allied activities
Government

Non-resident lending

Others

off

Bills balance

overdrafts Loans discounted Others Total sheet
exposures

RO'000 RO'000 RO'000 RO'000 RO'000 RO000
10,454 40,643 116 30,418 81,631 40,214
69 124 = B 193 188
6,108 10,504 = 3,597 20,209 2,949
930 34,195 - 329 35,454 664
11,219 29,800 = 19,790 60,809 89,058
11,769 33,070 3,350 22,644 70,833 44,093
355 25,419 - - 25,774 9,588
343 19,212 = - 19,555 648
10,149 65,260 - - 75,409 3,989
12,731 53,843 - 3,571 70,145 23,316
14,530 398,349 - 7,886 420,765 503
5 46 - » 51 6
1,358 70,386 : - 71,744 343

A 19,088 “ 536 19,624 209
22,557 73,869 - 145 926,571 24,357
102,577 873,808 3,466 88,916 1,068,767 240,125
8,228 72,168 323 15,862 96,581 27,745
406 6,688 . 24 7,118 8,245
4,185 9,507 10 1,863 15,565 2,793
418 14,173 91 200 14,882 1,954
10,469 22,411 - 13,714 46,594 58,257
5,613 30,526 2,660 13,520 52,319 22,251
462 22,227 - 309 22,998 5,097
1,239 10,980 = & 12,219 812
4821 34,640 - - 39,461 455
8,836 35,827 140 1,734 46,537 13,417
12,154 258,976 = 4,692 275,822 1,128
5 50 5 = 50 12

1,656 34,321 : - 35977 8

- 17,441 s - 17,441 94
14,565 51,911 = = 66,476 25,292
73,052 621,846 3,224 51,918 750,040 167,560
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35.  Risk Management (continued) 35.  Risk Management (continued) I
|

(i) Credit risk (continued) (i) Credit risk (continued) :

(g) Residual contractual maturities of the portfolio by major types of credit exposures: (h) Distribution of impaired loans and past due loans by type of Industry:

off-balance Provision Advances Il

Bills sheet Performing Non-  General  Specific made  written- |

overdrafts Loans discounted Others Total exposures loans performing provisions provisions  Interest during off during [

|

R0/000 RO'000 I — - R07000 RO'000 loans held held reserve  the year the year .

RO’'000 RO’000 RO’000 RO’000 RO'000 RO’000 RO'000 i

31 December 2008
0 31 December 2008

Upto 1 month 5129 57,888 3,420 84,722 151,159 58,776
Import Trade 71,433 10,198 715 4,301 5,533 4 214
1 - 3 months 5,129 60,891 46 1,534 67,600 56,347
Export Trade 90 103 1 37 13 - - |
3 - 6 months 5,129 37,891 “ 73 43,093 36,087 .
Wholesale/Retail Trade 10,111 10,098 102 4,931 5,088 51 - ‘
6 - 9 months 5,129 37,112 - 29 42,270 20,978 . )
Mining and Quarrying 35,454 = 355 & s ¥ %
9 - 12 months 5,129 39,483 - 33 44,645 13,110 y
Construction 57,651 3,158 577 1,284 841 238 =
1- 3 years 25,644 198,881 - 397 224,922 51,760 ] (l
Manufacturing 69,989 844 700 582 287 9 1 il
3 - 5 years 25,644 146,367 = 18 172,029 1,349 e i
Electricity, Gas and (i
Over 5 years 25,644 295,295 = 2,110 323,049 1,718 Water 25,774 . 258 - R B . j“:
\
102,577 873,808 3,466 88,916 1,068,767 240,125 Transport and }
Communication 19,553 2 196 1 1 . . i
Financial Institutions 75,409 - 754 - - . . Il
| |
31 December 2007 Services 66,100 4,045 661 2,063 1,946 7 - | |:
Personal Loans 411,280 9,485 8,771 3,490 4,921 380 45 Il
Upto 1 month 3,653 84,210 3,115 47,871 138,849 636 Agriculture and Allied !
1- 3 months 3,653 34,208 - 1,047 38,908 34,842 Activities 51 - 1 - - - - !
3 - 6 months 3,653 50,151 - 216 54,020 30,540 Government 71,744 - 718 - - . - E
6 - 9 months 3,653 22,763 - 7 26,423 11,975 Non-Resident Lending 19,624 - 196 - - - - ;
9 - 12 months 3,653 19,915 = 99 23,667 13,563 Others 96,554 17 985 5 12 = =
1- 3 years 18,262 143,485 109 383 162,239 52,566 1,030,817 37,950 14,990 16,694 18,642 689 260
3 -5 years 18,262 107,534 = 73 125,869 13,724
Over 5 years 18,263 159,580 . 2,222 180,065 9,714 31 December 2007
73,052 621,846 3,224 51,918 750,040 167,560 Import Trade 85,756 10,824 858 5,124 5,074 283 1,231
Export Trade 7,077 42 71 33 9 22 =
Wholesale /Retail Trade 6,469 9,096 65 4,919 4,178 40 5
Mining and Quarrying 14,882 - 149 2 = 47 -
Construction 44,352 2,242 444 1,415 718 142 342
Manufacturing 51,274 1,045 513 722 312 252 290 ‘
Electricity, Gas and Water 22,998 E 230 2 = 72 = ‘
Transport and !
Communication 12,193 26 122 7 2 38 S |
Financial Institutions 39,461 z 303 : - 123 - ‘ 1
Services 42,670 3,867 427 2,126 1,671 179 147 ‘
Personal Loans 266,572 9,250 5,741 4,264 4,597 1,801 79
Agriculture and Allied t
Activities 50 ) 1 . ) 1 ) w
Government 35,977 = 360 - = = = ‘
Non-Resident Lending 17,441 - 174 - - 54 = .
Others 66,459 17 751 5 12 209 -
1 OO 713,631 36,409 10,209 18,615 16,573 3,263 2,094 *] O‘] ”
|.
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35.  Risk Management (continued) 35. Risk Management (continued) H

(i)  Credit risk (continued) (i) Liquidity risk (continued) “
|
(i) Distribution of impaired loans and past due loans by geographical distribution: The Bank monitors it’s liquidity risk through internally generated Maturities of Assets and Liabilities (MAL) ,
Provision Advances report which captures all the maturing assets and liabilities into various pre-set time buckets ranging from |
Non- General  Specific made  written- overnight to five years. The Treasury department of the Bank controls and monitors the liquidity risk and ‘i
Gross performing provisions provisions  Interest during off during ensures that the Bank is not exposed to undue liquidity risk and at the same time makes optimum use of
loans loans held held reserve theyear the year its funds. In this, the Bank strictly adheres to the CBO set limit of 15% of cumulative liabilities (outflows) on |1
RO'000  RO'000 RO'000  RO'000  RO’000 RO'000 RO’'000 mismatches in time buckets upto one year. In addition, the Bank sets internal limit on mismatches in time
31 December 2008 buckets beyond one year which are approved by ALCO. The Bank has in place adequate lines of credit from ‘
both local and international banks to meet any unforeseen liquidity requirements. ‘
Sultanate of Oman 1,049,143 37,950 14,794 16,694 18,642 5,448 260 ‘
Other Countries 19,624 - 196 - - 22 - Maturity profile of assets and liabilities
1,068,767 37,950 14,990 16,694 18,642 5,470 260 : Due on More than i
31 December 2007 demand and 2 months to 7 months to 1 year to Over
up to 30 days 6 months 12 months 5 years 5 years Total ‘
sultanate of Oman 732,599 36,409 10,035 18,615 16,573 3,089 2,094 UERr— R0’000 RO'000 RO'000  RO'000 RO'000  RO'000 | ‘
er
Other Countries 17,441 > 174 = 5 174 _ ecem
750,040 36,409 10,209 18,615 16,573 3,263 2,094 Cash and cash
equivalents 115,749 - - - 500 116,249
Financial instruments at
(j) Maximum exposure to credit risk without consideration of collateral held: fair value through profit
or loss = 1,554 965 - = 2,519
ZA0R 2007 Loans and advances to
on-Balance sheet items RO’ 000 RO' 000 banks 30,448 3,288 - 3,850 7 37,586
i ' Loans and advances to
Certificate of depogit To0,008 100,000 customers 151,159 110,693 74,333 396,951 285305 1,018,441
Treasury bills 20,468 36,353 Available-for-sale
Loans and advances to banks 37,586 29,187 investments - - 11,412 - 2,375 13,787 .
Loans and advances to customers 1,018,441 704,643 Held-to-maturity I
Government Development bonds 2,519 2,515 investments 20,234 100,234 - 8 - 120,468 ‘
. ) i i} ) 7 .
1,179,014 872,698 Intangible asset | 3,:;; 3,29;
off-Balance sheet items Property and equipment ) ) 1; P 4'659 6’202 I
Financial Guarantees 140,731 103,549 Other assets 1,322 54 ' ; |
400,954 301,407 1,323,820 |
1,319,745 976,247 Total assets 318,912 215,823 86,724 00,954 407 1,323, I“
(ii) Liquidity risk Due to banks 12,663 38,500 1,925 36,575 - 89,663 I
s g G . . . . Deposits from customers 215,000 332,151 179,739 154,322 90,384 971,596
Liquidity risk arises in the general funding of the Bank’s activities and in the management of its positions. It Otill) o 7’418 9’398 21976 14’209 1’627 46 &35
includes both the risk of being unable to fund assets at appropriate maturities and rates and the risk of being e |.a — ' ' ' ; ’ 38’500 |
unable to liquidate an asset at a reasonable price and in an appropriate time frame. Subordinate laan i ] ) Bfane ) : I
Shareholders’ equity “ 10,970 - - 177,463 188,433 i

The Bank’s Liquidity Risk Management is governed by the Treasury Risk Policy document approved by the
Board of Directors as well as the provisions of relevant (BO guidelines on liquidity risk management. The
Treasury policy also incorporates contingency plans and measures for the Bank so as to be always in a
position to meet all its maturing liabilities as well as to fund asset growth and business operations. The
contingency plan includes effective monitoring of the cash flows on a day-to-day basis, holding of tradable |
high quality liquid assets, which may be readily disposed off in sizeable amount etc. |

Total liabilities and 235,081 391,019 184,640 243,606 269,474 1,323,820 Il
shareholders’ equity |
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35.

Risk Management (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(a)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Maturity profile of assets and liabilities (continued)

Due on 2 months to 7 months to More than Over Total
demandand ¢ months 12months 1yearto 5 years
“J’ to 5 years

30 days ¥

RO'000 RO'000 RO'000 RO'000 RO'000 RO'000
31 December 2007
Cash and cash
equivalents 118,928 e - # 500 119,428
Financial instruments
at fair value through
profit or loss 5 = < 2,515 - 2,515
Loans and advances to
banks 24,664 4,523 o = " 29,187
Loans and advances to
customers 138,849 92,929 38,741 288,108 146,016 704,643
Available-for-sale
investments = - 11,638 = 3,022 14,660
Held-to-maturity
investments 5,764 65,589 - 3 i 71,353
Intangible asset = = = - 3,971 3,971
Property and equipment 2 = = - 4,413 4,413
Other assets 1,443 15 77 137 3,285 4,957
Total assets 289,648 163,056 50,456 290,760 161,207 955,127
Due to banks 26,119 - s 67,375 = 93,494
Deposits from customers 106,377 244,640 145,421 97,757 80,307 674,502
Other liabilities 13,025 5.299 6,090 6,357 30,771
subordinate bonds and
loan ~ 7,362 = 38,500 o 45,862
Shareholders’ equity . 13,271 - - 97,227 110,498
Total liabilities and
shareholders’ equity 145,521 270,572 151,511 209,989 177,534 955,127

Market risk

Market risk includes currency risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk.
Currency risk

The Bank is exposed to currency risk through its transactions in foreign currencies. The major foreign
currency to which the Bank is exposed is the US Dollar. The currency in which the Bank presents its financial
statements is Rial Omani, the Bank’s financial statements are affected by movements in the exchange rates
between U.S Dollar and the Rial Omani. The Bank finances a significant portion of its financial assets in the
same currencies as the relevant measurement currencies to mitigate its foreign currency risk.

35.

Risk Management (continued)

(iii) Market risk (continued)

(a)

(b)

currency risk (continued)

The Bank’s transactional exposures give rise to foreign currency gains and losses that are recognised in the
income statement. The Bank ensures that its net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying and
selling foreign currencies at spot rates when considered appropriate. Foreign exchange risk is computed
on the average of the sum of net short positions or net long positions, whichever is higher of the foreign
currency positions held by the Bank. The foreign currency exposures are given below:

Foreign currency exposures

2008 2007

R0O'000 RO'000

Net assets denominated in US Dollars 26,511 20,558
Net assets denominated in other foreign currencies 2,498 3,146
29,009 23,704

Interest rate risk

The Bank’s operations are subject to the risk of interest rate fluctuations te the extent that interest-earning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities reset at different times. Risk management activities are aimed at
optimising net interest income, given market interest rate levels, consistent with the Bank's business
strategies. The Bank manages mismatches by following policy guidelines and reduces risk by matching the
repricing of assets and liabilities. Details relating to re-pricing mismatches and the interest rate risk thereon
are placed to the ALCO in its regular meetings and also to the Risk Committee of the Board. Impact on
earnings of interest rate risk in the banking book is as follows:

Interest rate sensitivity gap

Sensitivity to interest rates arises from mismatches in the period to repricing of assets and that of the
corresponding liability. The Bank manages these mismatches by following policy guidelines and reduces risk
by matching the repricing of assets and liabilities through various means including monitoring by the Asset
Liability Management Committee. Significant changes in gap positions can be made to adjust the profile as
market outlooks change.
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35.  Risk Management (continued)
(iii) Market risk (continued)

(b) Interest rate risk (continued)

Due on
Effective demand Due Due Due
average and within within within 1 Due Non-
interest  within 1to 6 7 to 12 to5 after5 interest
rate  30days months months years years  bearing Total
% RO'000 RO'000 RO’000 RO'000 RO’000 RO'000 RO'000
31 December 2008
Cash and cash
equivalents 2.0 - s - E 500 115,749 116,249
Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss 4.6 - 1,554 965 g . - 2,519
Loans and advances
to banks 2.8 30,448 3,288 - 3,850 & - 37,586
Loans and advances
to customers 7.0 242,678 100,435 72,928 362,127 234,344 5,929 1,018,441
Available-for-sale
investments e - . 2,375 - 11,412 13,787
Held-to-maturity
investments 2.0 20,234 100,234 = . - - 120,468
Intangible asset B - = = 3,971 3,971
Property and
equipment - = s : = 4,597 4,597
Other assets = - - - - 6,202 6,202
Total assets 293,360 205,511 73,893 368,352 234,844 147,860 1,323,820
Due to banks 3.3 12,211 75,075 1,925 = = 452 89,663
Deposits from
customers 2.3 267,807 246,642 123,853 72,396 48 260,850 971,596
Other liabilities - - - - - - 35,628 35,628
Subordinate bonds
and loan 5.0 - 38,500 - : - - 38,500
Shareholders’ equity N - - - - 188,433 188,433
Total liabilities and
shareholders’
equity 280,018 360,217 125,778 72,396 48 485,363 1,323,820
On-balance sheet
gap 13,342 (154,706) (51,885) 295,956 234,796 (337,503)
Cumulative interest
sensitivity gap 13,342 (141,364) (193,249) 102,707 337,503 =

35.

Risk Management (continued)

(iii) Market risk (continued)

(b) Interest rate risk (continued)

Due on
Effective demand Due Due Due
average and within within within 1 Due Non-
interest  within 1to6 7to12 to5 after5 interest
rate  30days months  months years years  bearing Total
% RO'000 RO’000 RO’000 RO’000 RO'000 RO'000 RO'000
31 December 2007
Cash and cash
equivalents 3.4 65,000 & = - 500 53,928 119,428
Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss - - - 2,515 = - 2,515
Loans and advances
to banks 5.4 24,664 4,523 = £ = = 29,187
Loans and advances
to customers 7.6 202,671 85,623 31,435 251,584 127,754 5,576 704,643
Available-for-sale
investments = - = 3,022 = 11,638 14,660
Held-to-maturity
investrments 4.7 5,764 65,589 5 - - = 71,353
Intangible asset = e = 5 3,971 3,971
Property and
equipment o z - 5 = 4,413 4,413
Other assets - - = - - 4,957 4,957
Total assets 298,099 155,735 31,435 257,121 128,254 84,483 955,127
Due to banks 5.4 25,783 67,375 = - - 336 93,494
Deposits from
customers 2.7 157,456 168,003 95,503 26,302 48 227,190 674,502
Other liabilities B < = ' = s 30,771 30,771
subordinate bonds
and loan 7.0 - 45,862 -+ - - - 45,862
Shareholders’
equity - - - - - 110,498 110,498
Total liabilities and
shareholders’
equity 183,239 281,240 95503 26,302 48 368,795 955,127
On-balance sheet
gap 114,860 (125,505) (64,068) 230,819 128,206 (284,312)
cumulative interest
sensitivity gap 114,860  (10,645) (74,713) 156,106 284,312 E
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35.

36.

Risk Management (continued)

(iti) Market risk (continued)

(b)

(9)

(iv)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Impact on earnings due to interest rate risk in the banking book

+or-1% +0r-2%
2008 2007 2008 2007
RO'000 RO'000 RO'000 RO'000
Omani Riyals 1,251 2,342 2,502 4,685
Us Dollars 1,105 1,169 2,209 2,339
Others Currencies 106 90 212 180
Total 2,462 3,601 4,923 7,204

Equity Risk

Bank is exposed to the volatility in the prices of the securities held under equity portfolio. Equity investments
held are for strategic/long-term rather than for trading purposes and hence Bank does not hold trading
positions in equity investments, However, Bank’s portfolio is marked to market on regular basis and the
difference in the book value and market value are adjusted against revaluation reserve in shareholder’s
equity. During the year 2008, equity portfolio eroded in value by RO 7.11 million which has been appropriated
against income statement and Revaluation Reserve.

Further, Bank also conducts stress testing and sensitivity analysis to take an informed decision on equity risk
exposure.

If equity price had been 5% lower:

If there is adverse impact of 5% on equity portfolio, the value of the portfolio may decrease by RO 674,198 /-
only (2007: Decrease by RO 732,983/-).

Operational Risk

The Bank has adopted the Basic Indicator Approach under Basel Il for purposes of measuring the capital
charge for Operational Risk. The approach requires the Bank to provide 15% of the average three years gross
annual income as capital charge for operational risk.

Capital risk management

The Bank manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising
the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Bank’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from 2008.

The capital base of the Bank consists of debt, which includes borrowings disclosed in note 17, and equity attributable
to shareholders of the Bank comprising issued capital, share premium, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed
in notes 18 to 21.

36.

Capital risk management (continued)

Capital adequacy

The ratio of equity to risk weighted assets, as formulated by the Basel Il, for the year ended 31 December 2008

is 16.63% (2007 - 14.87%).

Capital structure

TIER 1 CAPITAL

Paid-up capital

Legal reserve

Share premium

Subordinated bonds and loan reserve
Retained earnings

Proposed bonus shares

Less: Goodwill

Less: Negative investment revaluation reserve

Total Tier | capital

TIER 11 CAPITAL

Investment revaluation reserve
General provision
Subordinated loan

Total Tier Il capital

Total eligible capital

Risk Weighted Assets

Banking book
Trading book
Operational risk
Total

Tier | capital
Tier 1l capital
Tier Il capital

Total regulatory capital
Tier | capital ratio

Total capital ratio

2008 2007
RO’000 RO000
70,774 53,082
14,612 12,149
58,506 5,429
10,267 9,929
19,880 13,056

3,185 =
(3,971) (3,971)
(753) =
172,500 89,674
442 1,612
14,990 10,209
23,100 30,800
38,532 42,621
211,032 132,295

1,167,316 791,739
16,064 27,149
85,899 70,552

1,269,279 889,440

172,500 89,674

38,532 42,621
211,032 132,295
13.59% 10.08%
16.63% 14.87%
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37.

segmental information

The Bank is organised into three main business segments:

1) Retail banking - incorporating private custormner current accounts, savings, deposits, investment savings
products, custody, credit and debit cards, consumer loans and mortgages;

2)  Corporate banking - incorporating direct debit facilities, current accounts, deposits, overdrafts, loan and other
credit facilities, foreign currency and derivative products; and

3)  Treasury and investments;

Other operations comprise investment management and institutional finance neither of which constitutes a
separately reportable segment.

Transactions between the business segments are on normal commercial terms and conditions. Funds are ordinarily
allocated between segments, resulting in funding cost transfers disclosed in operating income. Interest charged
for these funds is based on the Bank’s cost of capital. There are no other material items of income or expense
between the business segments.

segment assets and liabilities comprise operating assets and liabilities, being the majority of the balance sheet,
but exclude items such as taxation and borrowings.

Internal charges and transfer pricing adjustments have been reflected in the performance of each business.
Revenue sharing agreements are used to allocate external customer revenues to a business segment on a
reasonable basis.

At 31 December 2008 Retail Corporate  Treasury and Total
banking banking Investments

RO’'000 RO'000 RO’000 RO'000

Interest revenues 28,528 32,099 3,044 63,671
Segment operating income 29,221 23,272 3,671 56,164
Segment assets 423,946 644,821 174,360 1,243,127
Less: Impairment allowance (50,326)
1,192,801

Unallocated assets 131,019
Total assets 1,323,820
Segment liabilities 388,638 582,958 128,163 1,099,759
Unallocated liabilities 35,628
Total liabilities 1,135,387

37.

38.

39.

40.

segmental information (continued)

At 31 December 2007 Retail Corporate  Treasury and
banking banking Investments Total
RO'000 RO’000 RO’000 RO'000
Interest revenues 21,080 25,692 4,838 51,610
Segment operating income 20,458 17,020 6,562 44,040
Segment assets 280,827 469,213 182,715 932,755
Less: Impairment allowance (45,397)
887,358
Unallocated assets 67,769
Total assets 955,127
Segment liabilities 277,730 396,772 131,994 806,496
Unallocated liabilities 38,133
Total liabilities 844,629

Proposed dividend

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 28 January 2009 proposed a cash dividend of 15.5% for the year
ended 31 December 2008 amounting to RO 10.97 million (2007 - RO 13.27 million) and a bonus share issue of
4.5% amounting to 31,848,224 shares (2007 - none) of RO 0.100 each. A resolution to approve these dividends
and the increase in share capital will be presented to the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

During the year, unclaimed dividend amounting to RO §,543.225 (2007 - RO 7,170) was transferred to the Investor's
Trust Fund account as per the guidelines issued by the Capital Market Authority of Oman.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 28 January 2009.

Comparative figures

Certain amounts of the prior year financial staternent have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s
presentation.
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